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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

On behalf of the Board of Directors (“the Board”), | am pleased to
present the annual results of Tonic Industries Holdings Limited for
the year ended 31 March 2006.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND OUTLOOK

For the Year under review, the Group achieved a revenue of
approximately HK$2,392 million. EBITDA and profit attributable to
shareholders were HK$ 117 million and HKS19 million respectively,
as compared with HKS119 million (restated) and HK$28 million
(restated) last year.

During the Year, the Group diversified into high margin products
including DVD recorders, portable DVD players, Global Positioning
System (GPS), Digital Video Broadcast products (DVB) and cable set
top boxes. The Group is committed to investing continuously in the
research and development of new products including iPod and
Xbox accessories, and various combos of DVD/VCR/DVD+RW/LCD-

TV/CRT-TV, and new products will be launched in the coming year.

ROBXEZERERDE

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT I EH S

LING Siu Man, Simon

Chairman & Managing Director
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CHAIRMAN’'S STATEMENT = E#{%

The Group’s cable set top box business in China matured in early
2006. China has been catching on fast with digital broadcasting
since the country’s State Administration for Radio Film and Television
announced plans to migrate from the analog broadcast mode to
the digital mode within the next few years. Analog service will be
obsolete by 2015. Cable set top boxes are now sold at affordable
prices and their sales are braced by their compatibility with the new
advanced digital broadcasting system and pre-pay SIM card

technology enabling new applications.

The expanded factory buildings in Shi Pai have provided the Group
with extra production capacity. Labour cost and sub-contracting
charges in Shi Pai are also relatively lower than other regions in
Dongguan. The factory will be up to 50 — 60% utilised in 2006/07
and will reach full operation in few years.

The business of the Home Appliance Division performed well during
the year and contributed a favourable margin to the Group. The
Division accounted for approximately 10% of the Group’s total
revenue. The Japan and USA offices, which focused on the Group's
own brand business, were closed during the year. The freed
resources will be injected into the Group’s OEM/ODM business in
the coming years.

During the year under review, high interest rate squeezed the
Group’s margin and put pressure on our financial resources. In
combat, the management will realign the Group’s production
facilities and find ways to reduce its reliance on external financial

resources. It will plan investment in production meticulously.

2006 marked the 30th Anniversary of the Group. Since the Group
started in 1976 as a consumer audio products manufacturer and
trader, the Group has established a solid foundation and expanded
its business horizons over the years. The anniversary is also a time to
look forward and the Group has a comprehensive product road
map which aim is to ensure sustainable growth and maintain the
competitive advantages of the Group. With material costs stabilising
and demand for digital products continuously increasing, we are
optimistic about the future of our business.
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FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board of Directors recommended the payment of a final cash
dividend of HK1 cent (year ended 31 March 2005: HK1 cent) per
share.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed from 18
September 2006 to 20 September 2006, both days inclusive, during
which no transfer of shares will be effected. To qualify for the
proposed final dividend, all transfer documents accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Share
Registrar in Hong Kong. Tengis Limited at 26/F, Tesbury Centre, 28
Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m. on 15
September 2006.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Group, | would like to extend my special thanks to
our employees for their continuous contribution and hard work, to
our customers and business partners for co-operating with and
supporting the Group, and to my fellow board members for their
dedication to good governance of the Company. We will continue
to improve the results of the Company and generate better returns
for our shareholders.

On behalf of the Board
Ling Siu Man, Simon

Chairman & Managing Director

Hong Kong, 18 July 2006
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EERSREEAEERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LING Siu Man, Simon, aged 56, is the Chairman and
Managing Director of the Company, Mr. Ling founded the business
of the Group in 1976 and has over 29 years experience in the
electronics industry. Mr. Ling is responsible for the strategic planning,
corporate policy, and marketing aspects of the Group.

Mr. LEE Ka Yue, Peter, aged 59, was appointed to the Board
following the investment of EHL in the Company in June 1997. He
is responsible for advising on the financial and corporate polices of
the Group as well as overseeing overall coordination between EHL
and the Group. He is also an executive director of EHL and has over
34 years experience in the timepiece and jewellery businesses as

well as in the consumer electronics industry.

Mr. WONG Ki Cheung, aged 56, joined the Group in 1976 and
is responsible for the Group’s overall management, purchasing and
materials control functions. He has over 26 years experience in the

electronics component industry.

Ms. LI Fung Ching, Catherine, aged 52, joined the Group in
1976 and is responsible for the management of the accounting,
treasury and administrative functions of the Group. She has over 26

years experience in the electronics industry.

Mr. AU Wai Man, aged 61, is the Group’s engineering consultant.
He is responsible for the research and development of the Group’s
new products. Prior to joining the Group in 1995, he has over 26

years experience in electronics product engineering.

Mr. LIU Hoi Keung, Gary, aged 41, joined the Group in 1997
and is responsible for the financial management and company
secretarial matters of the Group. He is an associate of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants. He also holds a
Master of Science degree from The University of Hong Kong. Prior
to joining the Group, he has over nine years experience in
accounting, auditing and taxation.
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Mr. LAM Kwai Wah, aged 41, joined the Group in 1998 and is
mainly responsible for the Group’s marketing activities in Europe.
He has over 20 years experience in marketing of electronics products
and home appliances. Mr. Lam obtained a higher certificate in
marketing and sales management from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. WONG Wai Kwong, David, aged 48, has over 24 years
experience in finance, accounting, corporate and taxation affairs.
He is a fellow of The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants,
and an associate of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, the Australian Association of Practising Accountants
and the Australian Association of Secretaries and Managers. He is a
director of Incutech Investment Ltd and an executive director of
EHL, both of which are companies listed on the Main Board of the
Stock Exchange. Mr. Wong is also a non-executive director of seven
other Hong Kong listed companies.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. PANG Hon Chung, aged 55, holds a master’'s degree in
business administration, and is a member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants and Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. Mr. Pang has extensive experience in business
management and is a director and the general manager of Lotus
International Limited. He is also a director of Graneagle Holdings
Limited, a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. CHENG Tsang Wai, aged 50, has over 28 years experience
in the garment industry and is a director and major shareholder of
Vicka Limited which is a sweater manufacturing company.

Dr. CHUNG Hing Wah, Paul (appointed on 26 June 2006),
aged 60, has over 35 years’ experiences with public service in
administration, operation, discipline, nursing and management. He
also has over 15 years” experiences in training and development
and management consultancy with various local and PRC Mainland
providers and corporations. Apart from being appointed as the
consultant or principal consultant of many major local and PRC
training providers, he is also the director and principal consultant of
PC Consultancy Ltd. Dr. Chung holds degrees of MBA and DBA.
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CTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT PROFILE
EERSREEAEERE

Mr. HO Fook Hong, Ferdinand (resigned on 1 April 20006),
aged 58, holds a bachelor’s degree in science and a master’s degree
in business administration from The University of Hong Kong and
has been admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Courts of Hong
Kong, England and Wales and Singapore. Mr. Ho also serves as an
independent non-executive director of Winsor Industrial Corporation
Limited and Winsor Properties Holdings Limited, both of which are
companies listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. YEUNG Hon Po, aged 58, is the production director of
Dongguan Xin Lian Digital Technology Co., Ltd. Mr. Yeung is
responsible for the management and manufacturing operations of
the Company in Dongguan Shi Pai Factory. He has over 38 years
experience in the production of electronic products and he joined
the Group in 1978.

Mr. CHUI Wing Kwong, aged 57, is the general manager of
Gold Beam Developments Limited. Mr. Chui joined the Group after
the acquisition by the Group of the new factory at Qi Shi in 1998.
Mr. Chui is responsible for the overall management of the Dongguan
Qi Shi factory. Mr. Chiu has over 31 years experience in the
manufacturing of audio, plastic and metal products.

Mr. KWOK Yiu Wa, aged 41, is the production manager of Tonic
Electronics Limited. He is mainly responsible for the management
and manufacturing operations of the Company in Dongguan Tang
Xia Factory. He is also responsible for the automation department in
the factory. Mr. Kwok has over 18 years of manufacturing experience
of electronic products and he joined the Group in 1988.

Ms. TAM Wing Ki, Samantha, aged 30, is the director of Tonic
Appliances Limited. She joined the Group in 1998 and is responsible
for the management and marketing of the home appliances division.
She received her Bachelor of Business Administration degree from
the University of Michigan (Ann Arbor) and Master of Science degree
in Engineering Business Management from the University of
Warwick.
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ANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEENWR D

BUSINESS DEVELOPMENT

The Group had successfully transformed the business from making
analogue audio products to digital video products after investing
heavily in research and developments. The popular demand of digital
products such as DVD during the last few years has proved that we
are heading towards the right direction. Our current products road
map covered a wide variety of digital products which we believe
will also be very popular in the coming years. DVD recorder with its
superb features and quality is destined to replace VCR in the near
future. Since small size LCD TV could be installed in the bath room
and kitchen in every household and DVB products capable of
receiving digital broadcast signal will be a must in 5 to 10 years all
over the world, the Group would therefore benefit from the
tremendous sales of these products.

WORKING CAPITAL

In early 2006, the Group expanded its cable set top box business.
Sales of set top box were particularly strong between January and
March 2006, accounting for almost 7% of the Group's total revenue.
In addition, sales orders for April to June 2006 were also
encouraging. As a result, inventory level and trade creditor level
were higher than those of last year. DK Digital GmbH fully settled its
outstanding debts to the Group and no bad debts provision was
required for the year. After the completion of the new Shi Pai factory,
we expect capital expenditure to decrease in the coming years.

LIQUIDITY RESOURCES

The Group had on 23 March 2006 signed a 3 year term loan facility
agreement for HK$ 150,000,000 with a syndicate of 7 international
and local banks. The loan is on HIBOR basis and repayable by
installment starting 18 months after the date of the loan agreement.
This syndicated loan was used to fully repay the syndicated loan
obtained on 3 December 2003, with the approximately HKS$27
million balance to serve the Group’s working capital requirements.
Under the terms of the loan agreement, Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon,
the Chairman and Managing Director of the Group, is required to
maintain at least 40% shareholding of the Company, be the single
largest shareholder and be actively involved in the management
and business of the Group, otherwise it will constitute as default.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEWmE DT

As at 31 March 2006, the Group had total borrowings of
approximately HK$461 million, of which HK$425 million was bank
borrowings and HK$36 million was for obligations under finance
leases. The Group’s borrowings are denominated in Hong Kong
dollars and bear interest mainly on HIBOR basis. Bank balances and
cash on hand, mainly denominated in Hong Kong dollars, amounted
to HK$ 100 million. Gearing ratio was 719%, calculated based on net
borrowings over shareholder funds.

The Group is not exposed to material currency fluctuation risks, as
most of its receivables are in US dollars and payable in Hong Kong
and US dollars. The Group purchases forward contracts with bank
to hedge against confirmed US dollar receipts. Except for a few
customers whom we offer credit on an open account basis, we
transact business with all other customers on letter of credit at sight
pbasis.

INVESTMENTS IN LISTED SECURITIES

The Group has invested in securities of certain listed companies in
Hong Kong. During the year, certain investments were disposed of
with a gain of HK$356,000 as compared with HK$20 million last
year. The Group continues to recognise the investment securities on
short-term basis and record it based on market value.

EMPLOYEES RELATIONS

As at 31 March 2006, the Group had 150 employees stationed in
Hong Kong and 8,000 employees in the PRC factories and office.
Total salaries and wages for the year amounted to approximately
HKS$ 129 million. The Group normally reviews staff salaries and wages
annually on the basis of staff performance and market conditions.
The Group also provides year-end incentive, discretionary bonuses,
provident fund, medical insurance and training to staff. Worker
welfare is determined with reference to prevailing labor laws in
Hong Kong and China.

RZZEEXF=ZA=+—H8  KNEEEREE
#9/5461,000,000/8 7T + & 425,000,000/ 7T
36,000,000 T AR BRITEERBERE
A AEBEWERUBTEE - FIEXTER
BEAERTAEREFE - RITEFLRESE
100,000,000/ 7C * FEUBTHEE - EEA
BELEEATI%  THIREFFERUREE S
:éj o

HRAREB RO BYKIBAZTHEE - ME
NRBAEBITTRETTAEE - BT S 5MNE R B
RN - AEECARITEEEREH - AU
HHEWRZETRATIE - BRABEFF N

AR AEREESN  AREEMEEMES
BUBBERBETRS °

BELWRSF
AEERERETERLMARINES - F
A BEHERTEREILEE 356,000 7T B
%+ EFH]A20,000,000/8 7T - NEE LS
R BEERRINEES  WAMEIER -

EERE

RZEEXF=ZA=+—H ~XEBEEER
FAETI150%  PENBELRAZRES
8000ZET - FAFHE&RIELHEENA
129,000,000/ 7T - A EE—RERIFEETH
THERBEMSEASFRIFMHRIE - &
SETEREETRMUHFRES - WAL
NEE  BERBREEI - EIEMDZBRE
BRPBRIRITS TARERT -

- . h



rs

2006 ! Annual Report

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ROBXEZERERAF

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE2# 4%

The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year ended 31
March 2006.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
subsidiaries engage in the design, manufacture and trading of
consumer electronic products and components and home appliance
products. There were no changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are
set out in note 18 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group’s profit for the year ended 31 March 2006 and the state
of affairs of the Company and the Group at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 35 to 127.

No interim dividend was paid to shareholders during the year (2005:
Nil). The directors recommend the payment of a final dividend of
HK1 cent per share (2005: HKI
shareholders whose names appear on the register of members on

cent per share) in cash to

20 September 2006. This recommendation has been incorporated
in the financial statements as an allocation of retained profits within
the equity section of the balance sheet.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and of the
Group during the year are set out in note 32(b) to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in equity,
respectively.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

In the opinion of the directors, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution represent the share premium account, contributed
surplus and retained profits. At 31 March 2006, the Company’s
reserves available for cash distribution and/or distribution in specie
amounted to HK$139,164,000, including the share premium
account, of which HK$9,529,000 has been proposed as a final
dividend for the year. Under the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of
the Cayman Islands, the share premium account of the Company,
in the amount of HK$59,098,000, is available for distribution or
dividends to shareholders, subject to the provisions of its
memorandum and articles of association and provided that
immediately following the distribution of dividends, the Company is
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due in the ordinary

course of business.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the year, the five largest customers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 45% of the total revenue of the Group and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 15% of the total

revenue of the Group.

During the year, the five largest suppliers in aggregate accounted
for approximately 34% of the total purchases of the Group and the
largest supplier accounted for approximately 11% of the total
purchases of the Group.

As far as the directors are aware, neither the directors, their
associates (as defined in the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Listing Rules”)),
nor any shareholders which, to the knowledge of the directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital, had any

interest in the five largest customers or suppliers.

FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results, assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate, is set
out on page 128. This summary does not form part of the audited

financial statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 14 to the financial

statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

There were no movements in Company’s share capital during the
year. Details of movements in the Company’s share options during
the year, together with the reason therefor, are set out in note 31

to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
articles of association or the laws of the Cayman Islands which
would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis

to existing shareholders.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of
this report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Ling Siu Man, Simon (Chairman and Managing Director)
Lee Ka Yue, Peter

Wong Ki Cheung

Li Fung Ching, Catherine

Au Wai Man

Liu Hoi Keung, Gary

Lam Kwai Wah

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS:

Wong Wai Kwong, David

Pang Hon Chung*

Cheng Tsang Wai*

Chung Hing Wah, Paul* (appointed on 26 June 2006)
Ho Fook Hong, Ferdinand* (resigned on 1 April 2006)

* Independent non-executive directors
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In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, Mr. Wong Ki Cheung, Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine,
Mr. Liu Hoi Keung, Gary, and Mr. Pang Hon Chung will retire and,
being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming

annual general meeting.

In accordance with article 99 of the Company’s articles of association,
Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul will retire and, being eligible, will offer

himself for re-election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The terms of office of the non-executive directors are the periods
from their dates of appointment to their retirement by rotation in

accordance with the Company’s articles of association.

The Company has received annual confirmations of independence
from Mr. Ho Fook Hong, Ferdinand, Mr. Pang Hon Chung and Mr.
Cheng Tsang Wai, and confirmation of independence from Dr.
Chung Hing Wah, Paul (newly appointed on 26 June 2006). Except
for Mr. Ho Fook Hong, Ferdinand, who has resigned on 1 April
2006, the Company still considers them to be independent as at the
date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES

Biographical details of the directors of the Group are set out on
pages 7 to 9 of the annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All the executive directors, other than Mr. Lee Ka Yue, Peter, and
Mr. Lam Kwai Wah, have entered into service contracts with the
Company for terms of three years commencing from 1 October
2003. Mr. Lam Kwai Wah has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a term of three years commencing from 27
September 2004.

Save as disclosed above, none of the directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting has a service
contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is not
determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders” approval at general
meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the Company’s
board of directors with reference to the directors’ duties,
responsibilities and performance and the results of the Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2006, the interests of the directors in the share capital
of the Company and its associated corporations (within the meaning
of Part XV of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)), as
recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock
Exchange”) pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions

by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

A) LONG POSITIONS IN ORDINARY
SHARES OF THE COMPANY

ROBXEZERERAF

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE2# 4%

EENE

EEHNSAKLKRRNBIRAE LHE - i
TAHARREREGL2ZEEIRG AF
INRAREE KRB NEEER -

EEEAzZROREBRRN &
mRRRE

RIBZERFZA=Z1T—RH EEREARAR
HEEE (EERBFRBEGRN ([BHK
HIERAI]) EXVER) 2 BRArp - A ARER
ARABRBESFLMERIEI2HEREFE
ZELM  HRBELTETAEFTETESFR
SHREETRBNERNARREABAR SR
BRAR ([BRH]) 2 #mmT :

A) ARAEBRZEFR

Percentage of

Number of the Company’s

ordinary issued share

Nature of shares held capital

interest it HARDE S BT

Name of director EENE EEME ZRRHE RA&E 5L

Ling Siu Man, Simon % >3 Corporate (note) 476,830,173 50.04

NCINC =)

Wong Ki Cheung =HHE Personal 1,749,000 0.18
(EPN

Li Fung Ching, Catherine FE A Personal 2,142,000 0.22
EPN

Liu Hoi Keung, Gary B oA Personal 8,000 -
(EPN

Pang Hon Chung FIEF Personal 2,000,000 0.21
EPN

482,729,173 50.65

Note: These shares were held by Success Forever Limited, a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, the entire issued share
capital of which is beneficially owned by Mr. Ling Siu Man,

Simon.
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B) ASSOCIATED CORPORATION

At 31 March 2006, Ling Siu Man, Simon personally held 2,850
non-voting deferred shares of HK$100 each of Tonic
Electronics Limited, a subsidiary of the Company.

The interests of the directors in the share options of the Company
are separately disclosed in note 31 to the financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2006, none of the directors
had registered an interest or short position in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant to Section
352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE
SHARES OR DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the heading “Directors’ interests and
short positions in shares and underlying shares” above and in the
share option scheme disclosures in note 31 to the financial
statements, at no time during the year were rights to acquire benefits
by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company granted to any directors or their respective spouse or
minor children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was
the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party
to any arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN
CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in note 37 to the financial statements, no contract
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party in which any director had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or any time during the year.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Concerning the share options granted to the directors and
employees, as detailed in note 31, the directors do not consider it
appropriate to disclose a theoretical value of the options granted
because in the absence of a readily available market value of the
share options on the shares of the Company, the directors were
unable to arrive at an assessment of the value of these share options.

B) B EE

R-TEERE=ZA=+—8  EI XA
ABAERRAMBRARARENEFAERA
RAIFREE 004 L 2 BIEERETRN
#2,8508% °

BEERARBBERENBENP B RRM
AIEHRE -

BEXHEEIN R_ZTENEFZA=1+—
H SEEMERAQRNETAMAEEEZ
B - HEROREST  BEEREESFR
HEIE DI 3526 R TR0 ek - R IE E 81T
ABEBETEFRZNZETRANG AR A
R RZ T2 S SORE ©

EERERODIEF Z2EF

B EXTESEHA 2 D MR RE B0 8 & Sk
B RF B RERME3 B R SR ESEM
BEEN  REAERAEERERETFAERSK
BESBZEBRAKNFEFLE TR - A5
BAARRBMDHESFMES - TEEIAZE
BAOETE  MARA - HERA R SEEM
B AR IS MAER B - BB EEAIRE
MEMEABBESZSEN -

EEREAGHNh &S

BUMBEHRMEIZREEIN  RERAFAE
AR E - ARBHEERNERRBET A E
MEENETREERIFAREARENEAXN
BH -

BRESE

RREENEERIBRESERE L (FHER
MizE31) EERA/ELEA R BN BERE
MIZEENERT  REMRLBREZER
BEXNMEE  BUESREN GXFHERE
MEME -

- ‘ h



2006 ! Annual Report

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ROBXEZERERAF

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS EE2# 4%

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND

OTHER PERSONS’

INTERESTS IN

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

At 31 March 2006, the following parties having the interests of 5%

or more of the issued share capital of the Company were recorded

in the register of interests kept by the Company pursuant to Section

336 of the SFO:

Name

=L

Success Forever Limited

(note 1) (K&t 1)

Eco-Haru Mfr. Holdings
Limited (“Eco-Haru”)
(note 2) (Bt & 2)

Glorious Concept Limited
(“Glorious Concept”)
(note 2) (Bt &£2)

EganaGoldpfeil (Holdings) Limited
(“EganaGoldpfeil”) (note 2)
sOMN BB SEE ([BEM ) (B aE2)

Peninsula International Limited
["Peninsula’) (note 3) (Kf#£3)

Notes:

Capacity
and nature
of interest

BORESEMEE

Directly beneficially owned

BEREEHRA
Directly beneficially owned

BERBEHA

Directly beneficially owned

ERBEEHA

Through controlled corporations

gl N E]

Through controlled corporations

BBREEE

1) The entire issued share capital of Success Forever Limited is beneficially

owned by Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, as disclosed in the section

“Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and underlying

shares” above.

2) The entire issued share capital of Eco-Haru and Glorious Concept is

beneficially owned by EganaGoldpfeil.

3) The issued share capital of EganaGoldpfeil is held as to 37.22% by

Peninsula.

H A+ R R
m

RIZBZERFZA=1+—H  REARFKRE
R EIRIRBIF 33 %ﬁﬁfEZ%m O A
RSk MBARACHITRASHRIA LIRS
Z AT
Percentage of
Number of the Company’s
ordinary issued share
shares held capital
FREBEB EARFE BT
RE B = o
476,830,173 50.04
181,651,303 19.06
12,753,000 1.34
194,404,303 20.40
194,404,303 20.40
ez
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B —EnFT# 5 + Success Forever Limited % &
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2006, no person, other
than the directors of the Company, whose interests are set out in
the section “Directors’ interests and short positions in shares and
underlying shares” above, had registered an interest or short position
in the shares or underlying shares of the Company that was required
to be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS AND
CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Details of the connected and continuing connected transactions of
the Company are set out in note 37 to the financial statements.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company have
reviewed and confirmed that the continuing connected transactions
set out in note 37 to the financial statements have been entered
into (i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(if) on normal commercial terms or on terms no less favourable to
the Group than terms available to independent third parties; and
(iii) in accordance with the relevant agreements governing them on
terms that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the
shareholders of the Company as a whole.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION
OF THE COMPANY'’S LISTED
SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE
CONTINUING DISCLOSURE
REQUIREMENTS UNDER CHAPTER 13
OF THE LISTING RULES

In compliance with the continuing disclosure requirements under
Rule 13.21 of Chapter 13 of the Listing Rules, the directors of the
Company reported the details of the following loan agreement
which included conditions relating to the specific performance
obligations of the controlling shareholder of the Company.
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During the year, the Group signed a term loan facility agreement
for a syndicated loan of HK$150 million for a period of three years.
Under the terms of the agreement, the chairman of the Company,
Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, being the single largest shareholder and is
actively involved in the management and business of the Group, is
required to maintain at least 40% of the beneficial interests in
shareholdings in the Company.

Under the terms of the agreement, the chairman of the Company,
Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, being the single largest shareholder and is
actively involved in the management and business of the Group, is
required to maintain at least 40% of the beneficial interests in
shareholdings in the Company.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the directors, at least 25% of the Company’s
total issued share capital was held by the public as at the date of
this report, being the latest practical date prior to the date of this
report.

AUDITORS

Ernst & Young retire and a resolution for their reappointment as
auditors of the Company will be proposed at the forthcoming annual

general meeting.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD

Chairman
Ling Siu Man, Simon

Hong Kong
18 July 2006
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COMPLIANCE WITH CODE ON
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors (“Board”) considers that good corporate
governance of the Company is central to safeguarding the interests
of the shareholders of the Group and enhancing the performance
of the Group. The Board is committed to ensure a high standard of
corporate governance. The Company’s corporate governance
practices are based on the principles (“Principles”), code provisions
(“Code Provisions”) as set out in the Code on Corporate Governance
Practices ("CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (“Stock Exchange”) (“Listing Rules”).

The Company has applied the Principles and the Code Provisions
and complied with the CG Code during the financial year ended 31
March 2006, except the Code Provisions (i) A.2.1 in respect of
separate roles of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, and (ii) A.4.2
in respect of retirement of Directors by rotation at least once every

three years.

Set out below are the status and details of compliance by the
Company of the CG Code for the year ended 31 March 2006.

THE BOARD
BOARD COMPOSITION

The Board has in its composition a balanced of skills and experience
appropriate for the requirements of the business of the issuer. The
Board has a balanced mix Directors, i.e. 7 Executive Directors, 1
Non-Executive Director and 3 Independent Non-Executive Directors.
The list of all Directors is set out under “Corporate Information” on
page 2 and the biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 7
to 9 of this annual report, which demonstrates a diversity of skills,
expertise, experience and qualifications.

The list of Directors (by category) is also disclosed in all corporate
communications issued by the Company pursuant to the Listing
Rules from time to time.

Save as disclosed hereon, to the best of knowledge of the Directors,
the Board members have no financial, business, family or other
material/relevant relationship with each other.
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During the year ended 31 March 2006, the Board at all times met the
requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least
three independent non-executive directors. Mr. Ho Fook Hong,
Ferdinand, Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company
resigned on 1 April 2006. Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul was appointed
as an Independent Non-Executive Director on 26 June 2006.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each
Independent Non-Executive Director of his independence pursuant
to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company considers all
Independent Non-Executive Directors to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in the Listing
Rules.

BOARD MEETINGS

Board meetings were held at least 4 times during the year roughly
on a quarterly basis. Dates for regular Board meetings are scheduled
in advance to provide sufficient time for the Directors to prepare
for. Special Board meetings will be held when necessary. Notice of
meeting will be given at least 14 days before the meeting. Directors
are consulted for matters to be included in the agenda and board
papers will be served at least 3 days before the meeting. Details of
the attendance of the Board meetings held for the year ended 31
March 2006 and up to the date of the publication of this report
were as follows:
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Attendance/
Number of Meetings
Name of Director EEnR HE&EEA
Executive Directors HITESE
Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon DX Rt
(Chairman and Managing Director) (FEFEFHLKLE) 5/6
Mr. Lee Ka Yue, Peter FRAKE 6/6
Mr. Wong Ki Cheung sEHERE 6/6
Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine FEELXT 6/6
Mr. Au Wai Man BEREE 6/6
Mr. Liu Hoi Keung, Gary B E k& 6/6
Mr. Lam Kwai Wah ML E 6/6
Independent Non-Executive Directors BUYFBITESE
Mr. Pang Hon Chung e 5/6
Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai L REEE 4/6
Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul i £
(appointed on 26 June 2006) (RZZEERFNAZTABEZEE) 1/1
Mr. Ho Fook Hong, Ferdinand fo] 48 Bk %& &
(resigned on 1 April 2006) (RZZEZTRFNA—HBHE) 2/4
Non-Executive Director HHITEE
Mr. Wong Wai Kwong, David HENKE 3/6
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Minutes of the Board, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and Executive Committee have been recorded in
sufficient details the matters considered in the meetings. All the
minutes are kept by the Company Secretary and are open for
inspection at any reasonable time on reasonable notice given by
any Director.

Directors can access to the advice and services of the Company
Secretary to ensure that Board procedures, and all applicable rules
and regulations are properly followed.

In addition, all Directors are regularly updated on corporate
governance and regulatory matters. There is a guideline for Directors
to obtain independent professional advice at the expense of the
Company in the furtherance of their duties. The Company has also
arranged appropriate Director and officer liability insurance cover in

respect of legal action against its Directors.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Chairman is responsible to manage the affairs of the Board and the
Chief Executive Officer is responsible to manage the day-to-day
operation of the Company’s business.

Code Provision A.2.1 stipulates that the roles of Chairman and Chief
Executive Officer should be separated and should not be preformed
by the same individual.

Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon is the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of the Group. He is responsible for the Group’s overall strategic
planning, management, objectives setting and corporate
development as well as the management of the Board's affairs. The
Board considers that this structure is more effective and efficient in
running the business. The Board believes that Mr. Ling's appointment
to the posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer is beneficial to
the business prospects of the Group.
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NOMINATION, APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION
AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The Group has a formal, considerate and transparent procedure for
the appointment of new Director to the Board. The Group has
adopted a nomination procedures and the Board of Directors, based
on the criteria established, evaluate and select candidates for the
directorships. The Board reviews the structure, size and composition
(including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board on a
regular basis and make recommendations regarding any proposed
changes. The Directors identifies suitable individual qualified to
become board members and makes recommendation on relevant
matters relating to the appointment or re-appointment of directors if
necessary, in particular, candidates who can add value to the
management through their contribution in the relevant strategic
business areas and whose appointments will result on the
constitution of strong and diverse board. The meeting of the Board
regarding the nomination of directors shall be held at least once a
year or when necessary. In case any Director resigns from the Board,

reasons for the resignation will be disclosed in the announcement.

Code Provision A.4.1 stipulates that Non-Executive Directors should
be appointed for a specific term, subject to re-election. The existing
Non-Executive Directors of the Company, except for Mr. Cheng
Tsang Wai and Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul being Independent Non-
Executive Directors of the Company, do not have a specific term of
appointment. However, Non-Executive Directors are subject to the
requirement to retire by rotation at annual general meetings under
the Company’s Articles of Association accomplishing the same
objective as a specific term of appointment.

In accordance with the Company’s Articles of Association, any new
Director appointed to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board should be subject to election by shareholders at the first
general meeting after appointment. Every Director, including those
appointed for a specific term, should be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years.
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The Company’s Articles of Association, on the other hand, are
inconsistent with Code Provision A.4.2 of the CG Code, which
provides that one-third of the directors for the time being (save for
the Chairman or Managing Director or Joint Managing Director), or
if their number is not three nor a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to but not less than one-third, shall retire from office by
rotation at least once every three years and being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at annual general meetings. The Board
considers that Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, Chairman of the Board,
should not subject to retirement to ensure continuity of leadership
and stability for growth of the Company.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

The principal focus of the Board is on the overall strategic
development of the Group. The Board also monitors the financial
performance and the internal controls of the Group’s business
operations.

In addition, the Board is charged with promoting the success of the
Group by directing and supervising its affairs in a responsible and
effective manner. Each Director has a duty to act in good faith in
the best interests of the Company. The Directors are aware of their
collective and individual responsibilities to all shareholders of the
Group for the manner in which the affairs of the Company are
managed, controlled and operated.

Director is required to keep abreast of his responsibilities as a Director
and of the conduct, business activities and development of the
Group. Non-Executive Directors have the same duties of care and
skill and fiduciary duties as Executive Directors.

The functions of Non-Executive Directors have included the functions
as specified in Code Provision A.5.2(a) to (d) of the CG Code.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The Board has delegated functions that are necessary and incident
to carry out the decision of the Board or to facilitate the day-to-day
operation of the Group in ordinary course of business to the senior
management and divisional heads of different units.

Major corporate matters that are specifically delegated by the Board
to senior management include execution of business strategies and
initiatives adopted by the Board, implementation of adequate
internal controls and risk management procedures, and compliance

with relevant statutory requirements and rules and regulations.
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SUPPLY OF AND ACCESS TO INFORMATION

Directors will be provided in a timely manner with appropriate
information in such form and of such quality as will enable them to
make an informed decision and to discharge their duties and
responsibilities as Directors of the Company.

In respect of regular Board meetings, and so far as practicable in all
other cases, an agenda and accompanying Board papers are sent
in full to all Directors in a timely manner and at least 3 days before
the intended date of a Board meeting.

Management is regularly reminded by the Company Secretary that
they have an obligation to supply the Board and its committees
with adequate information in a timely manner to enable them to
make informed decisions. The information supplied must be
complete and reliable. The Board and each Director have separate
and independent access to the Company’s senior management for
making further enquires where necessary.

TRAINING FOR DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director of the Group will receive an
information package from the Company Secretary on his
appointment. The package will include guidelines and information
such as:

(a)  Guidelines on Directors” Duties;

(b)  Brief notes and guidelines on Disclosure of Directors’ Interests
in Securities and Corporate Governance Practice;

(c)  The Group’s code of conduct regarding the securities

transactions by the Directors; and

(d) A copy of the Company’s Corporate Governance Handbook.

The senior management and the Company Secretary will
subsequently conduct such briefing as is necessary to ensure that
the Director has a proper understanding of the operations and
business of the Group, and the Director is aware of his obligation
under statue and common law, the Listing Rules, applicable legal
requirements and other regulatory requirements.
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DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Group has adopted its code of conduct for securities transactions
by Directors on terms no less exacting than the required standard
set out in the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of
Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the
Listing Rules. Having made specific enquiry of all Directors, the
Company has confirmed that all Directors have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code throughout the year of
2006.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS

The Company enters into Directors’ service agreements with each of
the Executive Directors (except Mr. Lee Ka Yue, Peter). Such
agreements set out the relevant terms for remuneration and other
benefits. The remuneration of the Directors was determined with
reference to the job responsibilities of the Directors, market
conditions and the performance of the Company.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

A majority of the members of the Remuneration Committee are
Independent Non-Executive Directors. This Committee is authorised
by the Board and makes recommendations to the Board on the
Company’s policy and structure for all remuneration of Directors
and senior management. Details of the attendance of the meeting
for the year ended 31 March 2006 and up to the date of this report
were as follows:

Members of the Remuneration

FHWEESEME

Committee

Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai (Chairman) BBEEE ()

Mr. Pang Hon Chung TERKE
Ms. Li Fung Ching, Catherine FRARL

There is a formal and transparent procedure for setting policy and
procedure for fixing the remuneration packages for all Directors and
senior management. The Group will gather and summarise
information relating to remuneration policy and other remuneration
related matters. The Remuneration Committee will meet at least
once a year and consider the above information and made
recommendation to the Board and have access to professional

advice if necessary.

EEEHFRS

AEBCRNERESETEFRRINITET
A Bz BERETNER LT R A0
NZEMAREFETEFRZNEESTH
(MRESFH) IR ENIRE - RRAZEBEFF
HEEERR  ARACHRBMEESNEE
—EERFEHCETRETURE 2 ZKE

EEHM

ARREE—UATERTLEFTRB H#E
(FRAFERIN) - ZEHZITIEFI R E
BAHOEBER - EFTHFHHI2EEZTOR
B mBRARKABREMETE °

TWEES

HFHERENASHRAYABIENGTE
¥oREERMEFRRR  YRAAAAT
EFRRAEE SRR LA FENES
EREREER - RE-TTAFZH=+—
BIEFERREARS T BB A LSS
REBWT ¢

Attendance/Number of Meeting

HE EREE

171
1/1
1/1

AEEREEMEEERRRAEEEHMNES
MEREMEE - CHFTRXERERAENE
Fre AEBQWETREEBHEMBRRE M
YA EENEN FHEZEeRERES
FRE-R TEBLAERRAEESRY
HBER EFRERNMAZAZEER -

- ‘ h



rs

2006 ! Annual Report

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

PORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible to present a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the Group’s performance, position
and prospect in the annual and interim reports. Other price-sensitive
information and financial disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other statutory requirements will be timely disclosed and

reported.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for keeping proper
accounting records and preparing accounts which give a true and
fair view for the year ended 31 March 2006.

The statement of the external auditors of the Company about their
reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is set out in the
“Report of the Auditors” on page 33 to 34.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board is responsible to ensure that the Group maintains sound
and effective internal controls to safeguard the shareholders’
investment and the Group'’s assets.

The Board and the management are responsible for the Group’s
system of internal controls and for reviewing its effectiveness and its
subsidiaries at least annually and to report to the Audit Committee.
The system will cover all material controls, including financial,
operational and compliance controls and risk management functions.
Copy of the minutes of Audit Committee meeting will also be sent

to the Board for information.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee comprises a Non-Executive Director and three
Independent Non-Executive Directors. Mr. Pang Hon Chung,
chairman of the Committee has the appropriate professional
qualification and experience in financial matters as required by the
Listing Rules. This Committee is authorised by the Board and
responsible for reviewing the financial reports, internal controls
principals and for maintaining an appropriate relationship with the
Company’s auditors. Details of the attendance of the Audit
Committee meetings held during the year ended 31 March 2006
and up to the date of this report were as follows:

BEREEE

EREZEGR RPN TEER=RB LN
TEREK - ZEGXRZEPRUBKEIES
HEBLELTMRAUMBAEZEBEEXEERRLE
B-ZZEGHESRE  AEEMMBR
& REPEE AR R BN B BN R IFE E
BER - -REE_TEAF-A=+—HLFE
FHERAGEBRRT EREZEEEREZH
FERERFFIBMAT :

Attendance/Number of Meetings

Members of the Audit Committee EREEENRE HE S EERE
Mr. Pang Hon Chung (Chairman) ZEREE (F)E) 3/3
Mr. Cheng Tsang Wai B {8 ok A& 3/3
Mr. Wong Wai Kwong, David HENXEE 3/3
Dr. Chung Hing Wah, Paul EEEH L

(appointed on 26 June 2006) (RZZEZEXNFRNAZ+TBEZMT) 1/1
Mr. Ho Fook Hong, Ferdinand fal & FE 58 &

(resigned on 1 April 2006) (RZZETAFHEA—HE T 2/2

The Audit Committee met with the external auditors during the year
to discuss any areas of concerns during the audits. The Audit
Committee reviewed the interim and annual reports before
submission to the Board. The Audit Committee focuses not only on
the impact of the changes in accounting polices and practices but
also on the compliance with accounting standards, the Listing Rules
and the legal requirements.

The Audit Committee has not taken a different view from the Board
regarding the selection, appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the Company’s external auditors.

The Company’s annual results for the year ended 31 March 2006
has been reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION BB B &
During the year under review, the remuneration paid to the REIBEERN - B TR B2 KEEAD
Company’s auditors, Ernst & Young, is set out as follows: EBMzBEenT
(HKS 000)
(F#)
Audit services F AR5 900
Non-statutory audit services relating 75 f3 BiE 2 5
to connected transaction 2 3EETE B LR 5
905
P Al =
EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE HITEES
All of the members of the Executive Committee are Executive WITZEEMERENANITES - ZZES
Directors. This Committee is chaired by Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon. HEDNEAREEER  HMKNEBREEAS
The other members are Mr. Wong Ki Cheung, Ms. Li Fung Ching, Sk FRERT  BERMAE - BERHBLLE
Catherine, Mr. Au Wai Man, Mr. Liu Hoi Keung, Gary and Mr. Lam & iilif'ﬁi cHLEECHEFGRE 1A
Kwai Wah, Peter. This Committee is authorised by the Board and is ERTEERBECTE AR EBEMN &
responsible for monitoring the execution of strategic plans and day- E L/(&E‘di'ﬁ%iﬁfi KRG 2 FEELIRTE ©
to-day operations of the business units and making decision on
matters relating to the management and operations.
= MR /— N
SECURITIES TRANSACTION BY THE FRAREEETESRS
RELEVANT EMPLOYEES
Under Code Provision A.5.4 of the CG Code, the Board has BRI EEEETAIEAL 4K %%ﬁﬂb{iﬁ
established written guidelines on no less exacting terms than the BIETENE@EESRETEAR REZ

Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealings in ZAESFA|Z 365! - [EEEE] @%1‘%.@1”
the Company’s securities. “Relevant employee” includes any BESBEITAMBARRIZERAFT ZESTHIE
employee of the Group or a Director or employee of a subsidiary or 8 - EAZBAIs XS a] gEp B AR R E 2 2 3F
holding company of the issuer, because of such office or FEMIARAMEREFBRER SR - KHE2ER
employment, is likely to be in possession of unpublished price FHRBETETEARZ  AAREREESR

sensitive information in relation to the Group and its securities. HEERFADETEBUEAR S 2 EAE
Having made specific enquiry of all Relevant Employees, the 3| o

Company confirms that all relevant employees have complied with
the written guidelines regarding securities transactions for the year.
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CORPORATE COMMUNICATION

The Group should announce its annual results and interim results in
a timely manner before the time limits set out in the Listing Rules.
Separate resolutions are proposed at the annual general meetings
on each separate issue, including the election of individual Directors.
In addition, procedures for demanding a poll at the annual general
meeting will be included in the circular to shareholders dispatched
together with the annual report. Any results of the poll are published
in the newspapers and on the Company’s website.

The Group has also maintained a website of http://
www.tonic.com.hk which enables shareholders of the Group,
investors and the general public to access to the information of the
Company on a timely basis. Financial information and all corporate
communications of the Group are made available on the Group’s
website and updated regularly.

VOTING BY POLL AT GENERAL
MEETINGS

The Company informs the shareholders in its circulars convening a
general meeting the procedures for voting by poll and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll to ensure compliance with the
requirements on the poll voting procedures. In accordance with
article 80 of Articles of Association of the Company, at any general
meeting a resolution put to vote of the meeting shall be decided on
a show of hands, unless a poll is (before or on the declaration of
the result of the show of hands) demanded by:

i) the Chairman of the meeting; or

ii) at least five shareholders present in person or by proxy and
entitled to vote; or

i) any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy
and representing in the aggregate not less than one-tenth of
the total voting rights of all members having the right to

attend and vote at the meeting; or

iv)  any shareholder or shareholders present in person or by proxy
and holding shares conferring a right to attend and vote at
the meeting on which there have been paid up sums in the
aggregate equal to not less than one-tenth of the total sum
paid up on all shares conferring that right.
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Unless a poll is so demanded and not withdrawn, a declaration by
the Chairman that a resolution has on a show of hands been carried,
or carried unanimously, or by a particular majority, or lost, and an
entry to that effect in the Company’s book containing the minutes
of proceedings of meetings of the Company shall be conclusive
evidence of that fact without proof of the number or proportion of
the votes recorded in favour of or against such resolution.

The Chairman of a meeting should at the commencement of the
meeting ensure that an explanation is provided of:

i) the procedure for demanding a poll by shareholders of the
Company before putting a resolution to the vote on a show
of hands; and

ii) the detailed procedures for conducting a poll and then answer
any questions from shareholders of the Company whenever
voting by way of a poll is required.
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REPORT OF THE AUDITORS #Z &R &

zll ERNST & YOUNG

% K &< B OE B A

To the members

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

We have audited the financial statements on pages 35 to 127 which
have been prepared in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong.

RESPECTIVE RESPONSIBILITIES OF
DIRECTORS AND AUDITORS

The Company’s directors are responsible for the preparation of
financial statements which give a true and fair view. In preparing
financial statements which give a true and fair view it is fundamental
that appropriate accounting policies are selected and applied
consistently. It is our responsibility to form an independent opinion,
based on our audit, on those financial statements and to report our
opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other
person for the contents of this report.

BASIS OF OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. An audit includes an examination, on a test basis, of
evidence relevant to the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. It also includes an assessment of the significant estimates
and judgements made by the directors in the preparation of the
financial statements, and of whether the accounting policies are
appropriate to the Company’s and the Group’s circumstances,

consistently applied and adequately disclosed.

We planned and performed our audit so as to obtain all the
information and explanations which we considered necessary in
order to provide us with sufficient evidence to give reasonable
assurance as to whether the financial statements are free from
material misstatement. In forming our opinion we also evaluated
the overall adequacy of the presentation of information in the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable
basis for our opinion.

BRIBEERERAT
(REAEFEZTMALZHERAA])
FII 7 A ER
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BLEN27ELREB ARG RANEE U
Hx -

EERERBAZEREE

ERFAICEFRAEMBEBRDNFT ZHBR
®-ERBZEEBRDNFTZHBRERE - &
FNEERFEAGECETBER - HFIZEE
ERBERMABRIHEZER  HZEMBHRE
FEBYER  WEABRERR®RSE BRI
SR EMEEMAE - AT ERARSE
ZABRAEAEMALTE ERAZEEMEE -

RRzE®

BPRBEBG DG RM 2 EBREER
ETERTIE BERHERRUAMETAERK
HP BB ARBELREETEER RS
NERFHEERNHEBEZSVBRRSMEZ
BXRMGEAMAE  AEE 2SRRI RES
BERANBEEEZARBAUANELRERER
WHRDBREZEGTER °

BPERE RETEZLER - UG 1)
BPRBR/LBTE2ERLBELSBR  ERMEE
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ROBXEZERERAF

'k%__ REPORT OF THE AUDITORS #Z & iR &

OPINION

In our opinion the financial statements give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Company and of the Group as at 31 March
2006 and of the profit and cash flows of the Group for the year
then ended and have been properly prepared in accordance with
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance.

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong
18 July 2006
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ROBEEZRERAT

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT Z8WE &

Year ended 31 March 2006

REVENUE

Cost of sales

Gross profit

Net gain on transfer of
long term investments
into other investments
Other income and gain
Selling and distribution costs
Administrative expenses
Other operating
income/(expenses), net
Impairment of an available-for-sale
investment

Finance costs

PROFIT BEFORE TAX

Tax

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

DIVIDENDS
Proposed final

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS
OF THE COMPANY
— Basic

— Diluted

WA

5 & P AR

EM

BERBKREESEAM
BE 2 W5

H AU A R W s
& Koy SR A
THX

Hip@ g WA/ () %8
Al & 2 R ERE
[ELE=J2

BR Bt A1 25 R

BiIA

DRAREFE ARG
FEEEF

3=\

R R H I =
RAFEBREFAA
EiEEREF

— &R

— 88

Notes

Ff i

24

BE-ZZEAFZAZ=T-BLEE

HK$'000 HKS 000
BT T JEMF T
(Restated)

(&E7)

2,392,219 2,636,294
(2,269,816) (2,528,140)
122,403 108,154

- 20,290

8,390 11,004
(9.872) (11,304)
(69,057) (83,894)
904 (1,962)
(11,110) =
(23,149) (12,750)
18,509 29,538

101 (1,684)
18,610 27,854
9,529 9,529

2.0 centsfl 3.9 centsflll
N/ATiE A N/AT i A

N i b
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET iz & BE BB

31 March 2006

NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid land lease payments

Intangible assets

Available-for-sale investments

Non-current portion of other
receivable

Non-current portion of loans
receivable

Deposits for acquisition of items of
property, plant and equipment

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Inventories
Accounts and bills receivable
Current portion of loans receivable
Prepayments, deposits
and other receivables
Prepaid land lease payments
Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss/
other investments
Tax recoverable
Cash and bank balances

Total current assets

CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities and other payables
Interest-bearing bank
and other borrowings
Derivative financial instruments
Tax payable

Total current liabilities
NET CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS LESS
CURRENT LIABILITIES

ERBEE

ME - BE MR

TR £ b 7H & 5RIB
BVEE

A EZRE

H At & Wk A SE B A #R

FEU & FER B o

BEME K&
kERBEHRBERS

FRBEERLE

RBEE

rE

JRE W B TR B R 4B
JE W & SR BN A BB o
BNRE - B2
H i & W IR
B+ & ROR
BAFEFAABRZ
BAKRE,
Hit k&

A Y@ A5 IR

Re RRITEF

mBEERE

REBAE

J& A AR 3K

&5t BB K H At FE S 3RIR
AERRTEREMEER

TESMIA
& B2 1R
mBBREAR
REBEEFH
EERERADAEE

ROBEEZERBRAT

—EEAF=A=+-A

Notes

libgz3

14
15
16
19
20

21

22
23
21

24

25

27
26

HK$°000 HKS' 000
BETFT BT T
(Restated)

(E731)

633,120 628,651
35,277 35,945
17,233 13,470
14,219 963
5,706 23,759
281 469
31,765 2,031
737,601 705,288
354,277 257,210
277,427 227,821
188 188
29,588 19,283
9,521 9.424
10,380 17,542
1,700 2,499
99,971 98,353
783,052 632,320
441,887 269,972
77,555 64,583
254,588 287,010
1,496 -
1,310 =
776,836 621,565
6,216 10,755
743,817 716,043




Tonic Industries Holdings Limited ROBXEERERAR

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET S8 ¥EEBEEX

31 March 2006 Z—ZEXE=HA=+—H

Notes HK$'000 HKS 000
B aF EBE T BT T
(Restated)
(&E751)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT BEERRDER 743,817 716,043
LIABILITIES
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES kRBEE
Interest-bearing bank AEARITRAMEBE
and other borrowings 27 206,239 187,613
Net deferred tax liabilities BELEFRIEE EF5E 29 29,512 31,709
Total non-current liabilities EMBBERTE 235,751 219,322
Net assets BEFHE 508,066 496,721
EQUITY R
Issued capital B TR 30 95,289 95,289
Reserves ke 32(a) 403,248 391,903
Proposed final dividend F R R AR AR B 12 9.529 9,529
Total equity 3 48 508,066 496,721
LING Siu Man, Simon LIU Hoi Keung, Gary
EDX B R
Director Director

g2F EF

N i b
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ROBEEZERBRAT

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
GERERBBR

Year ended 31 March 2006

BE-ZZRFE=ZRA=+—-HLEE

Issued Share Asset  Exchange Proposed
share  premium Contributed revaluation fluctuation  Retained final
capital account surplus reserve reserve profits  dividend
BEfT R BE HERD Bk
R& HEE HABE EfRR B RERN  RERS
i3 HK$°000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$°000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HK$000
A¥Fr BEFr  BETr  BETn  EETn AETr  BEFn BETr
At 31 March 2004 RZBEME=A=1-A
As previously reported ME 2R 63,526 28,735 280 86,320 (6,844) 221,346 3,176 396,539
Prior year adjustments BEEERE 240b) - - - (15,712 (673) 8,745 - (7,640)
As restated E2]] 63,526 28,735 280 70,608 (1517) 230,091 3176 388,899
Exchange realignment X A% - - - - 13 - - 13
Surplus on revaluation, SRR FH ()
net (as restated) 14 - - - 23,994 - - - 23,994
Deferred tax debited BRAMR ZET
to equity (as restated) Him (Z50) 29 - - - 2,989 - - - (2,989
Total income and expense RRAEREEDZ
for the year recognised REERAR
directly in equity Axas - - - 21,005 13 - - 21,018
Profit for the year [as restated)  AFE & H (£3]) - - - - - 27,854 = 27,854
Total income and expense RERRARRRES
for the year - - - 21,005 13 27,854 - 48,872
Issue of shares Ef7kfp 30 31,763 31,763 - - - - - 63,526
Share issue expenses RHEARR 30 - (1,400) - - - - - (1,400]
Final 2004 dividend paid EN-ZZMERERE - - - - - - 3,176) (3.176)
Proposed final 2005 dividend RE-ZZRERAKRE 12 - - - - - 9,529) 9,529 -
At 31 March 2005 R=22RF=A=1-H 95,289 59,098* 280* 91,613* (7,504 248 416* 9,529 496,721
At 1 April 2005 WZEZRERA-H
As previously reported ulER: 95,289 59,098 280 123,146 (6,831) 239,377 9529 519,888
Prior year adjustments BEFEAE 2.4(b) - - - 153 (673) 9,039 - (1Y)
As restated &J 95,289 59,098 280 91,613 (7,504 248,416 9,529 496,721
Exchange realignment EHEER - - - - 2,264 - - 2,264
Total income and expense RRAEERAL
for the year recognised REERARES 8
directly in equity - - - - 2,264 - - 2,264
Profit for the year RERRT - - - - - 18,610 - 18,610
Total income and expense REEUARF 28
for the year = = = = 2,264 18,610 = 20,874
Final 2005 dividend paid ENZZSRERERE - - - - - - 9,529 9,529
Proposed final 2006 dividend ~ RIE-TEAEXRHRE 12 - - - - - 9.529) 9,529 -
At 31 March 2006 RZEE 4=A=1-H 95,289 59,098* 280* 91,613* [5.240)F  257,497* 9,529 508,066
5 These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of L W EREREEREESEEBEXRAL

HKS$403,248,000 (2005 (restated): HKS$S391,903,000) in the
consolidated balance sheet.

403,248,000 T (—EZE R F (FF) :
391,903,000/87T) 45 & 18 ©



Tonic Industries Holdings Limited RAOBXEERBRLF

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
GERERER

Year ended 31 March 2006 HBEZZZEARF=FA=+—HILEE

Notes HK$°000 HKS 000
Mt iF BETFT BT
(Restated)
(E31)
CASH FLOWS FROM REXBEEZRERE
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax B 5% A it 7 18,509 29,538
Adjustments for: RN
Finance costs & B AN 7 23,149 12,750
Interest income F B WA 5 (1,094) (461)
Dividend income from e EmREZREWA
listed investments 6 (355) (734)
Gain on disposal of items of HEWE  BERZHE
property, plant and equipment HE 2z W= 5 (1,626) (319)
Fair value (gains)/losses, net: NTPE (W) EE - R
Equity investments at fair value RAFEGFABEZ
through profit or loss AR E 6 233 1,640
Derivative instruments — forward METHE-INERH
currency contracts, net GH - FEE 6 1,496 (2,404)
Net gain on transfer of long term HRAREELSEMBRE
investments into other investments 2 Wws 558 24 - (20,290)
(Gain)/loss on disposal of an equity HERQAFEFAEBRZ
investment at fair value AR E (W) /EE
through profit and loss 6 (356) 48
Depreciation e 6 70,100 71,880
Recognition of prepaid MR L7 & RIE
land lease payments 15 761 738
Amortisation of intangible assets I & = 16 4,742 4,674
Impairment of an available-for-sale AHEEZRERE 19
investment 11,110 —
Provision against inventories FEREE 6 132 688
Operating profit before working EEECEHRL LR
capital changes 126,801 97,748
Decrease in amount due — @5 & D R ROk >
from an associate - 74
(Increase)/decrease in inventories ' Cgm R (97,199) 142,945
(Increase)/decrease in accounts FEUBR R R =& (38 00)
and bills receivable Ve (49,6006) 4,690
Increase in prepayments, deposits ERHRIE ek
and other receivables b fE YR IE E N (9.747) (2,502)
Increase/(decrease) in EREREREM
trust receipt loans OB ) 58,829 (41,615)
Increase/(decrease) in FETRRZIE N, Ok 2>)
accounts payable 169,278 (175,685)
Increase in accrued liabilities FEET B & R A fih FE A
and other payables FRIE I N 12,616 13,006

Cash generated from operations KEXBEE RS 210,972 38,661

N i b



2006 ! Annual Report

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ROBEEZERBRAT

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT

Year ended 31 March 2006

Cash generated from operations

Interest received

Interest paid

Interest element on finance lease
rental payments

Hong Kong profits tax paid

Overseas taxes refunded/(paid)

Net cash inflow from
operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from
listed investments
Purchases of items of property,
plant and equipment
Additions to prepaid land
lease payments
Proceeds from disposal of items of
property, plant and equipment
Proceeds from disposal of
long term investments
Proceeds from disposal of an equity
investment at fair value through
profit or loss
Proceeds from disposal of trademarks
Additions to intangible assets
Purchases of an available-for-sale
investment
Decrease in loans receivable
Deposits for acquisition of items of
property, plant and equipment

Net cash outflow from

investing activities

GEHTRER

Notes

i

REXBEEZHR®
B E
BENHE
BEHEHSMNE D

ENEENEHR
BmE (B BINBEIE

REXBEEZ
ReRANFE

REFHEEZRERE
2l ETRERE

BEWE  BERXEEAR
33(i), (i)
815+ #i 7 & FRIE N
15
EEME  BE RREEH
FT 15 5K 18 33(iii)
& R E FTIS RIE

HERQAFEFARS
ZRARE SR

HEBIRFTSRA
B EEE M 16
BEAHLEZRE

& U & SRR
WEME  BEIKREREB
ZRE

KRERPEEZH T
R R

BE-—ZEEANF=ZA=+—HLEE

HK$°000 HKS' 000
BETFT BT T
(Restated)

(E731)

210,972 38,661
1,094 461
(21,547) (12,432)
(1,602) (318)
(168) (3,416)
181 (575)
188,930 22,381
355 734
(62,793) (124,529)
- (16,234)

2,280 3,099

- 19,652

7.285 -

- 128
(8,505) (8,008)
(607) -
188 187
(31,449) (828)
(93,2406) (125,799)




Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ROBEEZRERAT

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
RERERER

BE-—ZEANF=ZA=+—RHLEE

Year ended 31 March 2006

CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares

Share issue expenses
New bank loans
Repayment of bank loans
Capital element of finance

lease rental payments
Dividends paid

Net cash inflow/(outflow)
from financing activities

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE)
IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents
at beginning of year

Effect of foreign exchange rate
changes, net

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT END OF YEAR

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF
CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

Cash and bank balances

MEFHELEZRERE
BTN TS 30IR

B fn B ATF X

g RITE R
ERRITER
MEHSEHSAEHS
ENKRE

MEERHEEZRERAS
O i) F# 8

REeERERALEE
#m, (Rd) F8E

FNHRERERRELEE

% 5 55 R

FRASRERREER

BReRERALIEAER
BEDW

BeRRTER

Notes HK$000 HKS 000
Kot ¥ T T B F T
(Restated)
(&E7)
30 - 63,526
30 - (1,400)
160,000 52,700
(234,198) (95,260)
(10,565) (8,783) N
(9.529) (3,176) &
(94,292) 7,607
_FH
F-
1,392 (95,811)
98,353 194,161
226 3
99,971 98,353
99,971 98,353
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31 March 2006

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Interests in subsidiaries

Available-for-sale investment

Total non-current assets

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and bank balances

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accrued liabilities and other payables

NET CURRENT
ASSETS/(LIABILITIES)

Net assets

EQUITY

Issued capital

Reserves

Proposed final dividend

Total equity

FRBEE
INEIEPNGIE: $
AHrEEZRE

FRBEERE

RBEE
RE RIRITHEF

REBAE
&5t B B K B At FE S 3RIR

RBEE (AR FE

BEERE

L £
2 BT
]
R R B B B

ROBEEZERBRAT

Notes

i

18
19

30
32(b)

\ BALANCE SHEET5E&&@%K

—EEAF=A=+-A

HK$°000 HK$ 000
BT T BT
221,068 255,109
13,256 =
234,324 255,109
137 136

8 171

129 (35)
234,453 255,074
95,289 95,289
129,635 150,256
9,529 9,529
234,453 255,074
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ROBEEZRERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR Y EE

31 March 2006

CORPORATION INFORMATION

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited is a limited liability company
incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The registered office of
the Company is located at P.O. Box 309 GT, Ugland House,
South Church Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman
Islands, British West Indies.

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
The subsidiaries are engaged in the design, manufacture and
trading of consumer electronic products and components and
home appliance products. There were no significant changes
in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during the
year.

In the opinion of the directors, the parent and the ultimate
holding company of the Group is Success Forever Limited,
which is incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
(which also include Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants, accounting principles
generally accepted in Hong Kong and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention,
except for buildings, derivative financial instruments and
certain investments, which have been measured at fair value.
These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars
and all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries for the year
ended 31
consolidated from the date of acquisition, being the date on

March 2006. The results of subsidiaries are

which the Group obtains control, and continue to be
consolidated until the date that such control ceases. All
significant intercompany transactions and balances within the
Group are eliminated on consolidation.

2.1

—E2AE=A=1-8

RAEEH

RNBXRERERAR R —RKRFSH
EEMARIZBERAF - KRR ZEM
#E B AR P.O. Box 309 GT, Ugland
House, South Church Street, George
Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman lIslands,
British West Indies °

ARARETEEBRREER - B AR
fHEFRt HEMNEBEHBEEFERS
ZHRFEERER - TR AEEX
BEEBLHETESAES -

BEERAAEENE R A REEIERA
A AN R B R 2 #f 5 i A SZ Y Success

Forever Limited °

fm B EL %

HEHBHRRDIBREEEGAMASR
M EBMBEREEN ([BEVHRE
ZR]) (BRERGTEA ([BAEFE
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ROBXEZERBRAF

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR Y EE

31 March 2006

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS

The following new and revised HKFRSs affect the Group and

are adopted for the first time for the current year's financial

statements:

HKAS 1
HKAS 2
HKAS 7
HKAS 8

HKAS 10

HKAS 12

HKAS 14

HKAS 16

HKAS 17

HKAS 18

HKAS 19

HKAS 21

HKAS 24
HKAS 27

HKAS 32

HKAS 33

HKAS 36

HKAS 37

HKAS 38
HKAS 39

HKAS 39
Amendment

HKFRS 2

HKFRS 3

HK-Int 4

Presentation of Financial Statements

Inventories

Cash Flow Statements

Accounting Policies, Changes in
Accounting Estimates and Errors

Events after the Balance Sheet Date

Income Taxes
Segment Reporting
Property, Plant and Equipment

Leases

Revenue

Employee Benefits

The Effects of Changes in
Foreign Exchange Rates

Related Party Disclosures

Consolidated and Separate
Financial Statements

Financial Instruments: Disclosure
and Presentation

Earnings per Share

Impairment of Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities
and Contingent Assets

Intangible Assets

Financial Instruments: Recognition
and Measurement

Transition and Initial Recognition of
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Share-based Payment
Business Combinations
Leases — Determination of the Length of

Lease Term in respect of Hong Kong
Land Leases

—E2AE=A=1-8
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Tonic Industries Holdings Limited ROBEEZRBRDT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥ R B

31 March 2006 —ZEEARF=A=+—H

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS conminuepy

The adoption of HKASs 2, 7, 8, 10, 12, 14, 16, 18, 19, 21, 24,
27, 33, 36, 37, 38, HKFRS 3, and HK-Int 4 has had no material
impact on the accounting policies of the Group and the
Company and the methods of computation in the Group’s

and the Company’s financial statements.

HKAS 1 has affected the presentation of the consolidated
balance sheet, consolidated income statement, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and other disclosures.

The impact of adopting the other HKFRSs is summarised as

follows:

(a) HKAS 17 - LEASES

In prior years, leasehold land and buildings held for
own use were stated at valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses.

Upon the adoption of HKAS 17, the Group's leasehold
interest in land and buildings is separated into leasehold
land and buildings. The Group’s leasehold land is
classified as an operating lease, because the title of the
land is not expected to pass to the Group by the end of
the lease term, and is reclassified from property, plant
and equipment to prepaid land lease payments, while
buildings continue to be classified as part of property,
plant and equipment and are stated at valuation. Prepaid
land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently amortised on the
straight-line basis over the lease term.

The effects of the above changes are summarised in
note 2.4 to the financial statements. The changes have
been adopted retrospectively from the earliest period
presented and comparative amounts have been restated.

2.2 #

i KR R] & B B K IR
HFEANEE @

RMWBEBEsrERZE2- 78 10"
1214161819 21~ 24 27~
3336 37 38K RBABUBME AR
FI3R - UARBBSHEAAE —2E4W
KB AREERAR BT BRI RA
SERARANMBRRTE T IEBK
BARVE -

BB QTSR 'J%lﬁf BRI AEEAR
xR BRAKRER RAEZREHRUK
ﬁ@ﬁ%ﬁﬂ%zﬂ°
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS conminuepy

(b) HKAS 32 AND HKAS 39 - FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS

EQUITY SECURITIES

In prior years, the Group classified its investments
in equity securities for trading purposes as other
investments, which were stated at their fair values
on an individual basis with gains or losses
recognised in the income statement. Upon the
adoption of HKAS 39, these securities held by the
Group at 1 April 2005 in the amount of
HKS$17,542,000 are designated as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss under the
transitional provisions of HKAS 39 and accordingly
are stated at fair value with gains or losses being
recognised in the income statement.

In May 2005,
agreement with a trade customer to acquire a

the Group entered into an
19.05% equity interest in the shareholding of this

trade customer for a consideration of
HK$23,759,000, which was satisfied by offsetting
the balance receivable from this trade customer at
31 March 2005. As this equity investment is held
for a long term purpose, it has been designated

as an available-for-sale investment under HKAS 39.

As the fair value of this unlisted equity security
cannot be measured reliably, it is stated at cost

less any impairment losses.

The adoption of HKAS 39 has not resulted in any
change in the measurement of these equity
securities. Comparative amounts have been

reclassified for presentation purposes.
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B AR Y EE

St

31 March 2006

2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL
REPORTING STANDARDS conminuepy

(b) HKAS 32 AND HKAS 39 - FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

OTHER RECEIVABLE

In prior years, the Group’s long term receivables
were stated at cost. Upon the adoption of HKAS
39, such balances are measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

The effects of the above changes are summarised
in note 2.4 to the financial statements.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS - FORWARD
CURRENCY CONTRACTS

Forward currency contracts held to hedge risks
associated with the foreign currency exposures
arising from sales or purchases by the operating
unit in currencies other than the unit’'s function
currency are designated as cash flow hedges from
1 April 2005 and are recorded at fair value. The
portion of the gain or loss on the hedging
instrument that is determined to be an effective
hedge is recognised directly in equity, until the
transaction which is being hedged is itself
The

ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised

recognised in the financial statements.

immediately in the income statement. Previously,
unrealised gains or losses on the forward currency
contracts were taken to the income statement and
the discount or premium was either amortised over
the period of the contracts or taken to the income
statement. At the end of the period of each
contract, gain or loss was added to, or deducted
from, the amount of the relevant transaction.

The effects of the above changes are summarised
in note 2.4 to the financial statements. In
accordance with the transitional provisions of HKAS

39, comparative amounts have not been restated.
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2.2 IMPACT OF NEW AND REVISED 2.2 %ﬁ‘ﬂ&m« CHEN- R E
HONG KONG FINANCIAL EEZANEE @

REPORTING STANDARDS conminuepy

!

(c) HKFRS 2 - SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

In prior years, no recognition and measurement of share-
based payment transactions in which employees
(including directors) were granted share options over
shares in the Company were required until such options
were exercised by employees, at which time the share
capital and share premium account were credited with
the proceeds received.

Upon the adoption of HKFRS 2, when employees
(including directors) render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”), the cost

(c)

BREMBREERF 25 -
JR 7 2 30 B9 A3 K
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of the equity-settled transactions with employees is 1)  ZEHETETHRNEE
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at RGDNB2ERHANEBEEANAAE
which the instruments are granted. AT o

The main impact of HKFRS 2 on the Group is the
recognition of the cost of these transactions and a
corresponding entry to equity for employee share
options. The revised accounting policy for share-based
payment transactions is described in more detail in note
2.5 “Summary of significant accounting policies” below.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of
HKFRS 2 under which the new measurement policies
have not been applied to (i) share options granted to
employees on or before 7 November 2002; and (ii) share
options granted to employees after 7 November 2002
but which had vested before 1 April 2005.

As the Group did not have any employee share options
which were granted during the period from 7 November
2002 to 31 March 2005 but had not yet vested as at |
April 2005, the adoption of HKFRS 2 has had no impact
on the retained profits as at 31 March 2004 and 2005.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR Y EE

31 March 2006

2.3 IMPACT OF ISSUED BUT NOT YET
EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised
HKFRSs, that have been issued but are not yet effective, in
these financial statements.

HKAS 1 Amendment Capital Disclosures

HKAS 21 Amendment Net Investment in a

Foreign Operation

HKFRS 39 & HKFERS 4
Amendments

Financial Guarantee Contracts

HKFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures

The HKAS 1 Amendment shall be applied for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2007. The revised standard
will affect the disclosures about qualitative information about
the Group’s objective, policies and processes for managing
capital; quantitative data about what the Company regards as
capital; and compliance with any capital requirements and
the consequences of any non-compliance.

The HKAS 21 Amendment requires exchange differences arising
on a monetary item that forms part of a reporting entity’'s net
investment in a foreign operation to be recognised initially in
a separate component of equity in the consolidated financial
statements, irrespective of the currency of the monetary item
and of whether the monetary item results from a transaction

with the reporting entity or any of its subsidiaries.

HKFERS 7 requires disclosures relating to financial instruments
and incorporates in certain of and has modified the disclosure
requirements of HKAS 32. This HKFRS shall be applied for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2007.

2.3
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31 March 2006

EFFECTIVE HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (conminuep)

The adoption of the amendments to HKAS 39 regarding
financial guarantee contracts is expected to result in the
recognition of a financial liability in the Company’s balance
sheet in respect of corporate guarantees given by the
Company in connection with banking facilities granted to its
subsidiaries.

In accordance with the amendments to HKAS 39 regarding
financial guarantee contracts, financial guarantee contracts are
initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently measured
at the higher of (i) the amount determined in accordance
with HKAS 37 and (ii) the amount initially recognised, less,
when appropriate, cumulative amortisation recognised in
accordance with HKAS 18.

Except as stated above, the Group expects that the adoption
of the other pronouncements will not have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements in the period of

initial application.
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24 BT HRBBNTERE

31 March 2006

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a) EFFECT ON THE CONSOLIDATED
BALANCE SHEET

(a) HREEERBERNTE

Effect of adopting

RaNTEIZHE
At 1 April 2005 HKAS 17# HKAS 32# HKAS 39*
FEEEA  FEEMEN FEEHEH
R=2FEFWA-A E17%4 3284 £39%+
Prepaid Change in Forward
Effect of new policies land lease classification currency
(Increase/(decrease)) payments of investments contracts Total
Bt RE 25
FRR2EE BN/ (D)) BERE 2828 EHBEH @5t
HKS 000 HK$ 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
BB BEFT BETT BB
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment nE - BERER (73,159 - - (73,159
Prepaid land lease payments BN LHHEENRE 45,369 - - 45,369
Available-for-sale investments THERE - 963 - 963
Prepayments, deposits and BNHIE  HER
other receivables A it A - (963) - (963]
Equity investments at fair value BRATEFABEZ
through profit or loss BARE - 17,542 - 17,542
Other investments Hip g & - (17,542) - (17,542
Derivative financial instruments TEEMIA - - 2,404 2,404
(25,386)
Liabilities/equity B/ RE
Accounts payable EHERR - - 2,404 2,404
Deferred tax liabilities EEREAR (4,623) - - (4,623)
Asset revaluation reserve BEEMGER (31,533 - - (31,533
Exchange fluctuation reserve R B E 673) - - 673]
Retained profits & & 9,039 - - 9,039
(25,386)

# Adjustments/presentation taken effect retrospectively

*  Adjustments taken effect prospectively from 1 April 2005

#  BYEREFE TR

* R-BERFPH— HEEHL

B

N ‘ b
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2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF 24 BT HEREIN T ERE
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING ()
POLICIES conmnuep)

(a) EFFECT ON THE CONSOLIDATED

31 March 2006

a) HEEEEEERNEE

2006 ! Annual Report

BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) (&)
Effect of adopting
BaNTEAzEE
HKASs 32
At 31 March 2006 HKAS 17 HKAS 32 and 39 HKAS 39
BAGMERN FESHEN FESHEN FESHER
R-BEAE=A=1-H F17% £328  F32R39% %398
Prepaid Change in Forward
Effect of new policies land lease classification Other currency
(Increase/(decrease)) payments of investments receivable contracts Total
AL RE Hit 258
FRR2EE WM/ (BD)) HEE PEEE ERHRE EBEH )
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000
BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT BEFT
Assets BE
Property, plant and equipment nE - HERZE (71,939 - - - (71,939
Prepaid land lease payments BN REHE 44,798 - - - 44,798
Available-for-sale investments MHERE - 25,329 - - 25,329
Non-current portion of L8 EREL
other receivable ERBHH - - (1,326) - (1,326)
Long term investment RERE - (24,360) - - (24,366)
Prepayments, deposits and BNHE #ER
other receivables H{t e e FRIB - (963) - - 963]
Equity investments at fair value YN FEUNEE:
through profit or loss ZLIRARE - 10,380 - - 10,380
Other investments AR E - (10,380) - - (10,380)
(28,467)
Liabilities/equity 8/ &R
Derivative financial instruments fTEeRMIA - - - 1,496 1,496
Account payable EfTERH - - - (1,496) (1,496)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHEAE (1,320) - - - (1,320)
Asset revaluation reserve EEBfHfE (34,609) - - - (34,609
Exchange fluctuation reserve XK B E (771) - - - (771)
Retained profits R E & A 9,559 - (1,326 - 8,233

(28,467)
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POLICIES (conminuep)

MR MR

—EE

— ==

2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING

(b) EFFECT ON THE BALANCES OF
EQUITY AT 1 APRIL 2004 AND AT 1

APRIL 2005 (CONTINUED)

Effect of new policies
(Increase/(decrease))

FBRZEE N (BD))

1 April 2004

Asset revaluation reserve
Exchange fluctuation reserve
Retained profits

1 April 2005

Asset revaluation reserve
Exchange fluctuation reserve
Retained profits

—ZEETNFYA—H
BEEHEE
P& 5% &) 7% 1

& B 4t A

—ZERFNWNA—H
BESHHR
PE LK B A

R B8t A

AEZHA=+—H
24T RSN ERE

(b) HE—_ZFEZEMNFMNA—-—HRK
—_EERFENA—HBHER
EROTE @

Effect of
adopting

HKAS 17
RAEEEHER
ERVE A2
Prepaid land
lease payments
A L E IR
HKS'000

BT T

(15,712)
(673)
8,745

(7,640)
(31,533)

(673)
9,039

(23,167)

N i b
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2.4 SUMMARY OF THE IMPACT OF 24 BT HEREHNTEME
CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING (&)
POLICIES conmnuep)

(c) EFFECT ON THE CONSOLIDATED
INCOME STATEMENT FOR THE

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

31 March 2006

(c) HHE-BTAER=-F
BHEF=A=+-ALF

YEARS ENDED 31 MARCH 2006 ENFRERERNTE
AND 2005
Effect of adopting
HAATER 2 &
HKAS 17 HKAS 32
EEBGHERN BFBEER
F75 %E325%
Prepaid land Other
Effect of new policies lease payments receivables Total
AL H
FERENEE HEMRE FE W 3k 18 et
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BT T B FoT B TFoT
Year ended 31 March 2006 EHZ_-ZTZEXF
ZA=t+—-HLEE
Decrease in cost of sales $H & B AN R 653 - 653
Decrease in administrative TR H R A
expenses 94 = 94
Increase in finance costs Bl & X AN 38 0 = (1,326) (1,326)
Increase in tax 4 T8 38 0 (227) - (227)
Total increase/(decrease) F A m,
in profit for the year O 2) 42 %8 520 (1,326) (806)
Increase/(decrease) in basic FBREARF M
earnings per share (HK cent) ORt4>) GEALD - (0.1) (0.1)
Year ended 31 March 2005 ®BZ_ZTZTHF
ZA=+—-HLEE
Decrease in cost of sales $H & B 2N R > 337 = 337
Decrease in administrative T2 H R A
expenses 163 = 163
Increase in tax 7t I8 38 A0 (206) - (206)
Total increase in profit F 2 m A8 I 4a zE
for the year 294 = 294

Increase in basic earnings
per share (HK cent)

BB AR & A5
G
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31 March 2006 —ZEZEXFE=HA=+—H

2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES
SUBSIDIARIES

A subsidiary is an entity whose financial and operating policies
the Company controls, directly or indirectly, so as to obtain
benefits from its activities.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the Company’s
income statement to the extent of dividends received and
receivable. The Company’s interests in subsidiaries are stated
at cost less any impairment losses.

GOODWILL

GOODWILL PREVIOUSLY ELIMINATED AGAINST
THE CONSOLIDATED RESERVES

Prior to the adoption of SSAP 30 “Business Combinations” in
2001, goodwill arising on acquisition was eliminated against
the consolidated reserve in the year of acquisition. On the
adoption of HKFRS 3, such goodwill remains eliminated against
consolidated reserves and is not recognised in profit or loss
when all or part of the business to which the goodwill relates
is disposed of or when a cash-generating unit to which the

goodwill relates becomes impaired.

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual
impairment testing for an asset is required (other than
inventories and financial assets), the asset’s recoverable amount
is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is calculated as
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use
and its fair value less costs to sell, and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets
or groups of assets, in which case, the recoverable amount is
determined for the cash-generating unit to which the asset
belongs.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)

IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS (CONTINUED)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value
in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their
present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with the

relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether
there is any indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A
previously recognised impairment loss of an asset is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the recoverable amount of that asset, however not
to an amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/amortisation),
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior
years. A reversal of such impairment loss is credited to the
income statement in the period in which it arises, unless the
asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the
reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance
with the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

RELATED PARTIES

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)  the party, directly or indirectly through one or more
intermediaries, (i) controls, is controlled by, or is under
common control with, the Group; (ii) has an interest in
the Group that gives it significant influence over the

Group; or (iii) has joint control over the Group;

(b)  the party is a member of the key management personnel
of the Group or its parent;

(c) the party is a close member of the family of any
individual referred to in (a) or (b); or

25 T EEHHEHERE @
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)

RELATED PARTIES (cCONTINUED)

(d)  the party is an entity that is controlled, jointly controlled
or significantly influenced by or for which significant
voting power in such entity resides with, directly or
indirectly, any individual referred to in (b) or (c); or

(e) the party is a post-employment benefit plan for the
benefit of the employees of the Group, or of any entity
that is a related party of the Group.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND DEPRECIATION

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in
progress, are stated at cost or valuation less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses. The cost of an item
of property, plant and equipment comprises its purchase price
and any directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to its
working condition and location for its intended use.
Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and
equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs and
maintenance, is normally charged to the income statement in
the period in which it is incurred. In situations where it can be
clearly demonstrated that the expenditure has resulted in an
increase in the future economic benefits expected to be
obtained from the use of an item of property, plant and
equipment, and where the cost of the item can be measured
reliably, the expenditure is capitalised as an additional cost of
that asset or as a replacement.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that
the fair value of a revalued asset does not differ materially
from its carrying amount. Changes in the values of property,
plant and equipment are dealt with as movements in the
asset revaluation reserve. If the total of this reserve is
insufficient to cover a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the
excess of the deficit is charged to the income statement. Any
subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the income
statement to the extent of the deficit previously charged. On
disposal of a revalued asset, the relevant portion of the asset
revaluation reserve realised in respect of previous valuations is

transferred to retained profits as a movement in reserves.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND DEPRECIATION (CONTINUED)

Depreciation is calculated to write off the cost or valuation of
each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual
value over its estimated useful life at the following rates per
annum:

Buildings 4% on the straight-line basis

Leasehold improvements 10% to 25% on the reducing
balance basis

Furniture and fixtures 10% to 25% on the reducing
balance basis

Equipment and tools 10% to 25% on the reducing
balance basis

Motor vehicles 30% on the reducing balance
basis

Moulds 25% on the straight-line basis

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment
have different useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on
a reasonable basis among the parts and each part is
depreciated separately.

Residual values, useful lives and depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet
date.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss on disposal
or retirement recognised in the income statement in the year
the asset is derecognised is the difference between the net
sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents the cost of buildings under
construction in Mainland China not yet ready for their intended
use. Construction in progress is stated at cost less any
impairment losses. Cost comprises the direct costs of
construction during the period of construction. Construction
in progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)
INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either
finite or indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for
impairment whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and the
amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful
life are reviewed at least at each balance sheet date.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT COSTS

All research costs are charged to the income statement as
incurred.

Expenditure incurred on projects to develop new products is
capitalised and deferred only when the Group can
demonstrate the technical feasibility of completing the
intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale, its
intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset,
how the asset will generate future economic benefits, the
availability of resources to complete the project and the ability
to measure reliably the expenditure during the development.
Product development expenditure which does not meet these
criteria is expensed when incurred.

Deferred product development costs are amortised using the
straight-line basis over the commercial lives of the underlying
products not exceeding five years, commencing from the date
when the products are put into commercial production.

TRADEMARKS

Trademarks are stated at cost less accumulated amortisation
and any impairment losses. They are amortised using the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives but not

exceeding ten years.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)
LEASES

Leases that transfer substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets to the Group, other than legal title, are
accounted for as finance leases. At the inception of a finance
lease, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised at the present
value of the minimum contract payments and recorded
together with the obligation, excluding the interest element,
to reflect the costs of purchase and financing. Assets held
under capitalised finance leases are included in property, plant
and equipment and depreciated over the shorter of the lease
terms and the estimated useful lives of the assets. The finance
costs of such leases are charged to the income statement so
as to produce a constant periodic rate of charge over the
lease terms.

Assets acquired through hire purchase contracts of a financing
nature are accounted for as finance leases, but are depreciated
over their estimated useful lives.

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks of
ownership of assets remain with the lessor are accounted for
as operating leases. Where the Group is the lessor, assets
leased by the Group under operating leases are included in
non-current assets and rentals receivable under operating
leases are credited to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee,
rentals payable under the operating leases are charged to the
income statement on the straight-line basis over the lease

terms.

Prepaid land lease payments under operating leases are initially
stated at cost and subsequently recognised on the straight-

line basis over the lease terms.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS

APPLICABLE TO THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2005:

The Group classified its equity investments, other than
subsidiaries, as other investments.

Other investments

Other investments are investments in equity securities held for
trading purposes and are stated at their fair values on the
basis of their quoted market prices at the balance sheet date,
on an individual investment basis. The gains or losses arising
from changes in fair values of such securities are credited or
charged to the income statement in the period in which they
arise.

APPLICABLE TO THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2006:

Financial assets in the scope of HKAS 39 are classified as either
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
receivables, and available-for-sale financial assets, as
appropriate. When financial assets are recognised initially, they
are measured at fair value, plus, in the case of investments
not at fair value through profit or loss, directly attributable
transaction costs. The Group determines the classification of
its financial assets after initial recognition and, where allowed
and appropriate, re-evaluates this designation at the balance
sheet date.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are
recognised on the trade date i.e., the date that the Group
commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales
are purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within the period generally established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets classified as held for trading are included in
the category “financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss”. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if they
are acquired for the purpose of sale in the near term.
Derivatives are also classified as held for trading unless they
are designated as effective hedging instruments. Gains or
losses on investments held for trading are recognised in the
income statement.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)

INVESTMENTS AND OTHER FINANCIAL
ASSETS (CONTINUED)

APPLICABLE TO THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH
2006: (CONTINUED)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with
fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. Such assets are carried at amortised cost using
the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognised
in the income statement when the loans and receivables are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation

process.

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative financial
assets in unlisted equity securities that are designated as
available for sale or are not classified in any of the above
categories. After initial recognition, available-for-sale financial
assets are measured at fair value, with gains or losses
recognised as a separate component of equity until the
investment is derecognised or until the investment is
determined to be impaired, at which time the cumulative gain
or loss previously reported in equity is included in the income
statement.

When the fair value of unlisted equity securities cannot be
reliably measured because (a) the variability in the range of
reasonable fair value estimates is significant for that investment
or (b) the probabilities of the various estimates within the
range cannot be reasonably assessed and used in estimating fair

value, such securities are stated at cost less any impairment losses.

Fair value

The fair value of investments that are actively traded in
organised financial markets is determined by reference to
quoted market bid prices at the close of business at the balance
sheet date. For investments where there is no active market,
fair value is determined using valuation techniques. Such
techniques include using recent arm’s length market
transactions; reference to the current market value of another
instrument which is substantially the same; a discounted cash
flow analysis; and option pricing models.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(APPLICABLE TO THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2006)

The Group assesses at each balance sheet date whether there
is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired.

ASSETS CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans
and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred,
the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not
been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate (i.e., the effective interest rate computed
at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is
reduced either directly or through the use of an allowance
account. The amount of the impairment loss is recognised in

profit or loss.

The Group first assesses whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are
individually significant, and individually or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is
determined that no objective evidence of impairment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant
or not, the asset is included in a group of financial assets with
similar credit risk characteristics and that group is collectively
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed
for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or
continues to be recognised are not included in a collective

assessment of impairment.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the
asset does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (contiNUED)

IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCIAL ASSETS
(APPLICABLE TO THE YEAR ENDED 31
MARCH 2006) (CONTINUED)

ASSETS CARRIED AT COST

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on an
unqguoted equity instrument that is not carried at fair value
because its fair value cannot be reliably measured has been
incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference
between the asset’'s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Impairment losses on
these assets are not reversed.

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

If an available-for-sale asset is impaired, an amount comprising
the difference between its cost (net of any principal payment
and amortisation) and its current fair value, less any impairment
loss previously recognised in profit or loss, is transferred from
equity to the income statement. Impairment losses on equity
instruments classified as available for sale are not reversed
through profit or loss.

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS (APPLICABLE TO THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2006)

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is
derecognised where:

] the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expired;

] the Group retains the rights to receive cash flows from
the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay in full
without material delay to a third party under a “pass-
through” arrangement; or

] the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows
from the asset and either (a) has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the
asset.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
ASSETS (APPLICABLE TO THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2006) (CONTINUED)

Where the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash
flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement in the asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee
over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum
amount of consideration that the Group could be required to

repay.

Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written
and/or purchased option (including a cash-settled option or
similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the
Group’s continuing involvement is the amount of the
transferred asset that the Group may repurchase, except in
the case of a written put option (including a cash-settled
option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value,
where the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement is
limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset

and the option exercise price.

INTEREST-BEARING LOANS AND
BORROWINGS

All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair
value of the consideration received less directly attributable

transaction costs.

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

Gains and losses are recognised in net profit or loss when the
liabilities are derecognised as well as through the amortisation

process.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)

DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL
LIABILITIES (APPLICABLE TO THE YEAR
ENDED 31 MARCH 2006)

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the
original liability and a recognition of a new liability, and the
difference between the respective carrying amounts is

recognised in profit or loss.

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
AND HEDGING (APPLICABLE TO THE
YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2006)

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such as
forward currency contracts to hedge its risks associated with
foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date
on which a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are carried
as assets when the fair value is positive and as liabilities when
the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken
directly to net profit or loss for the year.

The fair value of forward currency contracts is calculated by
reference to current forward exchange rates for contracts with
similar maturity profiles.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined on the weighted average basis and,
in the case of work in progress and finished goods, comprises
direct materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion
of overheads. Net realisable value is based on estimated selling
prices less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, cash
and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand
deposits, and short term highly liquid investments which are
readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and
have a short maturity of generally within three months when
acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the balance sheet, cash and bank balances
comprise cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
and assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted

as to use.

PROVISIONS

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is
probable that a future outflow of resources will be required to
settle the obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be

made of the amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount
recognised for a provision is the present value at the balance
sheet date of the future expenditures expected to be required
to settle the obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is included in
finance costs in the income statement.

INCOME TAX

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax is
recognised in the income statement, or in equity if it relates to
items that are recognised in the same or a different period
directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)

INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

. where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit or loss; and

. in respect of taxable temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, except where the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary
differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and unused
tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised except:

] where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible
temporary differences arises from the initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction,
affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or
loss; and

L] in respect of deductible temporary differences associated
with investments in subsidiaries, deferred tax assets are
only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available against which
the temporary differences can be utilised.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 25 T ESTTHEME »

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)
INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised. Conversely, previously unrecognised deferred tax
assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are
recognised to the extent that it is probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the
deferred tax asset to be utilised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is
realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the
balance sheet date.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset, if a
legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to
the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when the revenue can be
measured reliably, on the following bases:

(a)  from the sale of goods, when the significant risks and
rewards of ownership have been transferred to the
buyer, provided that the Group maintains neither
managerial involvement to the degree usually associated
with ownership, nor effective control over the goods
sold;

(b)  from the rendering of handling fee services, when the
services have been rendered;

(c)  rental income, on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms;
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminuep)
REVENUE RECOGNITION (CONTINUED)

(d) interest income, on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to the net carrying amount
of the financial assets; and

(e) dividend income, when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs are recognised as expenses in the income
statement in the period in which they are incurred.

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS
SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company operates a share option scheme for the purpose
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants
who contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.
Employees (including directors) of the Group receive
remuneration in the form of share-based payment transactions,
whereby employees render services as consideration for equity
instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with employees is
measured by reference to the fair value at the date at which
they are granted. In valuing equity-settled transactions, no
account is taken of any performance conditions, other than
conditions linked to the price of the shares of the Company
(“market conditions”), if applicable.

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised, together
with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period in
which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled,
ending on the date on which the relevant employees become
fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The cumulative
expense recognised for equity-settled transactions at each
balance sheet date until the vesting date reflects the extent to
which the vesting period has expired and the Group’s best
estimate of the number of equity instruments that will
ultimately vest. The charge or credit to the income statement
for a period represents the movement in the cumulative
expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that
period.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (cONTINUED)

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately
vest, except for awards where vesting is conditional upon a
market condition, which are treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market condition is satisfied, provided that
all other performance conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, as a
minimum an expense is recognised as if the terms had not
been modified. In addition, an expense is recognised for any
modification, which increases the total fair value of the share-
based payment arrangement, or is otherwise beneficial to the

employee as measured at the date of modification.

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled, it is treated as if it
had vested on the date of cancellation, and any expense not
yet recognised for the award is recognised immediately.
However, if a new award is substituted for the cancelled
award, and is designated as a replacement award on the date
that it is granted, the cancelled and new awards are treated
as if they were a modification of the original award, as
described in the previous paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as
additional share dilution in the computation of earnings per
share.

The Group has adopted the transitional provisions of HKFRS 2
in respect of equity-settled awards and has applied HKFRS 2
only to equity-settled awards granted after 7 November 2002
that had not vested on 1 April 2005.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (cONTINUED)

EMPLOYMENT ORDINANCE LONG SERVICE
PAYMENTS

Certain of the Group’s employees have completed the required
number of years of service to the Group in order to be eligible
for long service payments under the Hong Kong Employment
Ordinance in the event of the termination of their employment.
The Group is liable to make such payments in the event that
such a termination of employment meets the circumstances
specified in the Employment Ordinance.

A provision is recognised in respect of the probable future
long service payments expected to be made. The provision is
based on the best estimate of the probable future payments
which have been earned by the employees from their service
to the Group to the balance sheet date.

PENSION SCHEMES

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance, for
those employees who are eligible to participate in the MPF
Scheme. Contributions are made based on a percentage of
the employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the income
statement as they become payable in accordance with the
rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme, except for the Group’'s employer voluntary
contributions, which are refunded to the Group when the
employee leaves employment prior to the contributions vesting
fully, in accordance with the rules of the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in
Mainland China are required to participate in a central pension
scheme operated by the local municipal government. These
subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage of their
payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The contributions
are charged to the income statement as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension scheme.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)
DIVIDENDS

Final dividends proposed by the directors are classified as a
separate allocation of retained profits within the equity section
of the balance sheet, until they have been approved by the
shareholders in a general meeting. When these dividends have
been approved by the shareholders and declared, they are

recognised as a liability.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared,
because the Company’'s memorandum and articles of
association grant the directors the authority to declare interim
dividends. Consequently, interim dividends are recognised
immediately as a liability when they are proposed and
declared.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

These financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars,
which is the Company’s functional and presentation currency.
Each entity in the Group determines its own functional
currency and items included in the financial statements of
each entity are measured using that functional currency.
Foreign currency transactions are initially recorded using the
functional currency rates ruling at the date of the transactions.
Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the functional currency rates of
exchange ruling at the balance sheet date. All differences are
taken to the income statement. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at
the date when the fair value was determined.
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2.5 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (conminueD)
FOREIGN CURRENCIES (cONTINUED)

The functional currencies of certain overseas subsidiaries are
currencies other than the Hong Kong dollar. As at the balance
sheet date, the assets and liabilities of these entities are
translated into the presentation currency of the Company at
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and, their
income statements are translated into Hong Kong dollars at
the weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are included in a separate
component of equity. On disposal of a foreign entity, the
deferred cumulative amount recognised in equity relating to
that particular foreign operation is recognised in the income

statement.

For the purpose of the consolidated cash flow statement, the
cash flows of overseas subsidiaries are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the exchange rates ruling at the dates of the
cash flows. Frequently recurring cash flows of overseas
subsidiaries which arise throughout the year are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange
rates for the year.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

JUDGEMENTS

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from
those involving estimations, which have the most significant
effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements:
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
IMPAIRMENT OF ASSETS

The Group has to exercise judgement in determining whether
an asset is impaired or the event previously causing the asset
impairment no longer exists, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred that may affect the asset value
or such event affecting the asset value has not been in
existence; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset or
derecognition; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to be
applied in preparing cash flow projections including whether
these cash flow projections are discounted using an
appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected by
management to determine the level of impairment, including
the discount rates or the growth rate assumptions in the cash
flow projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key
sources of estimation at the balance sheet date which may
cause an adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below.

ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUE OF BUILDINGS
In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
buildings, the Group considers information from a variety of

sources, including:

(@) current prices in an active market for buildings of a
different nature, condition or location (or subject to
different lease or other contracts), adjusted to reflect
those differences;

(b)  recent prices of similar buildings on less active markets,

with adjustments to reflect any changes in economic
conditions since the date of the transactions that

occurred at those prices; and
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

(CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY (CONTINUED)

ESTIMATION OF FAIR VALUE OF BUILDINGS
(CONTINUED)

(c) discounted cash flow projections based on reliable
estimates of future cash flows, supported by the terms
of any existing lease and other contracts and (when
possible) by external evidence such as current market
prices for similar buildings in the same location and
condition, and using discount rates that reflect current
market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount

and timing of the cash flows.

The principal assumptions for the Group’s estimation of the
fair value include those related to current market prices for
similar properties in the same location and condition,
appropriate discount rates, expected future market prices and
future maintenance costs.

The carrying amounts of buildings at 31 March 2006 were
HKS$243,492,000 (2005 (restated): HK$242,506,000).
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Segment information is presented by way of two segment
formats: (i) on a primary segment reporting basis, by business
segment; and (ii) on a secondary segment reporting basis, by
geographical segment.

The Group’s operating businesses are structured and managed
separately, according to the nature of their operations and
the products provided. Each of the Group’s business segments
represents a strategic business unit that offers products which
are subject to risks and returns that are different from those of
the other business segments. Summary details of the business
segments are as follows:
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(a) the electronic products and components segment (a) EFEMERZHIHEER
consists of the design, manufacture and sale of audio ENEHEXEEMmBETH
and video products and components;

(b)  the home appliance products segment consists of the b) REEREMDIRERERHEE
manufacture and sale of home appliance products; and REEREm

(c)  the corporate segment comprises corporate income and

expense items.

In determining the Group’s geographical segments, revenues
and results are attributed to the segments based on the
location of the customers, and assets are attributed to the

segments based on the location of the assets.

There were no intersegment sales and transfer during the
year (2005: Nil).

) 2RElDIHE
B

EETASERME S PR - 2R
WAREBREFEE - Mo
EEEERIREEMELE

FAYELSBRAHELER (ZFTZTR
FoE) o
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“.NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

31 March 2006

(a) BUSINESS SEGMENTS

MR MR

—E2AE=A=1-8

and 2005.

Group

Segment revenue:

Sales to external
customers

Other segment revenue 45 84 A

Total

Segment results

Interest income and
unallocated income

Unallocated expenses

Finance costs

Profit before tax
Tax

SEGMENT INFORMATION conmnnuep) 4. DEER @)
(a) BEKE D
The following tables present revenue, profit and certain THREINAEBEB DI REE=
asset, liability and expenditure information of the Group’s EERNFER_ETERF=_A=1+—
business segments for the years ended 31 March 2006 HEFEHNBA RFARETE
EBERAINER -
xEH
Electronic products Home
and components appliance products Corporate Consolidated
ETERREH FEEREM A )
2006 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
ZEERE ZEERE CZTRE Z8FXE 2T RE ZBBAE —2204
HK$°000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKS000 HK$000  HKS'000
BETn EETn BETT BEFT E¥Tn BEETr BETn EETR
[Restated) [Restated) [Restated)
(E71) (E71) (E31)
AHYA
BETHREP
2,141,160 2,367,455 251,059 268,839 - - 2,392,219 2,636,294
5,346 9,018 751 473 - = 6,097 9,491
&5t 2,146,506 2376473 251,810 269312 - - 2,398,316 2,645,785
PHEE 48,852 26,853 5,070 3,493) (532) (231) 53,390 23,129
MBBAR
APRBA 3,431 21,804
RAEZH (15,163)  (2,645)
BEKR (23,149)  (12,750)
BT A A 18,509 29,538
A 101 (1,684]
EREMN 18,610

Profit for the year

21,854
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B # SRk Y =
31 March 2006 —ZEZEXRF=ZA=+—H

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION conmnuep) 4. PEER @)

(a) BUSINESS SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) (a) HEKE D (&)
Group K&
Electronic products Home
and components appliance products Corporate Consolidated
ETERREH FEERER 4 g8

2006 2005 2006 2005 2006

—REAE CTRRE _RFAE CTTRE CRENE
HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000  HKS'000 HK$'000

BETT BETT A¥Fr EETr BETT BETT BETR
(Restated) (Restated)
(&%) (&71)
Assets and Liabilities £& & & %&
Segment assets PHEE 1,280,620 1,091,361 113,948 102,955 - - 1,394,568
Unallocated assets APEBE 126,085
Total assets BEE 1,520,653
Segment liabilities PHEE 458,008 29195 61,427 42428 7 171 519,442
Unallocated liabilities AP E & & 493,145
Total liabilities BaE 1,012,587
Other segment A HER
information:
Capital expenditure ~ EARFI X 99,365 154,667 15,520 11,198 - - 114,885
Depreciation and TEREH
amortisation 64,779 63,533 10,063 13,021 - - 74,842

Surplus on revaluation B # A%

recognised directly  BRBZ

in equity BiERH - 22478 - 1,516 - - -
Impairment losses EERBERE

recognised in the ERZ

income statement REBE - - - - 11,110 - 11,110
Provision/(write-back ~ FE& S/
of provision (BEEE)

against) inventories 267 442 (135) 246 - - 132

HK$'000
BEFT
(Restated)

(B51)

1,193,316

144,292

1,337,608

334,555

506,332

840,887

165,865

76,554

23,994

688

N n b
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\ NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. SEGMENT INFORMATION conmnuep) 4.
(b) GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENTS

The following table presents revenue and certain asset
and expenditure

geographical segments for the years ended 31 March
2006 and 2005.
Group

Segment revenue:

Sales to external customers

Other segment information:
Segment assets
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Total

Capital expenditure
- Hong Kong
- Mainland China

Total

information for

B 35 R AR B =
—EEAE=A=+-H

2 EWER @
(b) Bt EE S

TRENAEEREEZE-_TTF
the Group’s F_ETRFE=A=1+—HLFE
WBMARETEERBAIRER -

31 March 2006

ZN S
Asia-Pacific
Americas Europe countries Others Consolidated
£ Bl EAEAR At 58

2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005 2006 2005
£ 2285 ik

hE ZBENE

HK$'000  HKS000 HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HKSO00 HK$'000  HKS000 HKS$'000  HKS000
BEFn EETT BT EETn BETrn BETn BT BETn BETn BETn
(Restated|
(31)
AHUA
HETHAEE 991,863 781,402 998,780 1307766 347,192 302,158 54,384 244,968 2,392,219 2,636,294
AfpadEs
-Ek 486,632 450,186
Sl 1,034,021 887,422
st 1,520,653 1,337,608
BARY
-&k 2,583 21478
~# 112,302 144,387
st 114,885 165,865
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB AR M EE

31 March 2006 —ZEZEXFE=HA=+—H

.2 3.2
5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND 5. W& HWAREHE
GAIN
Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the WM mAREZ £35 - HIEHHEM
invoiced value of goods sold, net of discounts and returns, BEERRRIEANEARZ ZE - MK
after elimination of all significant intra-group transactions. MERENELEmERE -
An analysis of revenue, other income and gain is as follows: Was EMBRAREBEHOTAT :

HK$°000 HKS'000
BT JEMF T
Revenue Wz o
Manufacture and sale of electronic BUERHEHES Og\
products and components EmkZEMH 2,141,160 2,367,455
Manufacture and sale of home BlERIEERE
appliance products B Em 251,059 268,839
_FH
2,392,219 2,636,294 :
Other income H g A
Handling fee income FEERA 1,737 8,014
Bank interest income ERAT AL E A 1,094 461
Others Hh 3,933 2,210
6,764 10,685
Gain B
Gain on disposal of items of EEWE  BER
property, plant and equipment FEIEEME R 1,626 319

8,390 11,004
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B S Rk f et
31 March 2006 —ZEZEXRF=ZA=+—H
6. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. BRBATE F

AEENBRBAMEMNENER, GIA)T
%18

~1l’

The Group’s profit before tax is arrived at after charging/

(crediting):

Notes HK$°000 HKS 000
K i BT T B F T
(Restated)
(E31)
Cost of inventories sold EEFERAE 2,268,188 2,529,856
Provision against inventories FEEE 132 688
5 Fair value (gains)/losses on derivative ~ $TE &R T H - &8
é} financial instruments-forward REEHRATE
T currency contracts, net () BiERE 1,496 (2,404)
[
< Cost of sales 5 & A AR 2,269,816 2,528,140
Depreciation e 14 70,100 71,880
Amortisation of trademarks* 72 3R B 16 255 260
3 Research and development costs: f 75 I A B AR -
R Deferred development i R 2% R A AN B 8
costs amortised* 16 4,455 4,414
Current year expenditure REFRE 1,280 498
Minimum lease payments under T REEFLEHELD
operating leases on land ZRIEHEE
and buildings 4,029 3,671
Auditors’ remuneration % BLRD B & 905 787
Employee benefits expenses 8 T 12 A k<
(including directors’ (BEEEME
remuneration — note 8): — Ki:E8) -
Wages and salaries TERFH® 126,496 123,393
Pension scheme contributions RINE B 2,344 2,256
Less: Forfeited contributions** o BOR U R (39) (48)
Net pension scheme contributions RS a8t TR 2,305 2,208
128,801 125,601
Foreign exchange differences, net ME N = FE SR (61) (3,030)
Fair value losses on equity investments 12 A F{ELAEBZREZ
at fair value through profit or loss BRAKEZ AT EEE 233 1,640
(Gain)/loss on disposal of an equity HERAFELAERE
investment at fair value R E 2
through profit or loss (#XR) EiE (356) 48
Gross and net rental income from T REFHES WA
land and buildings EE R FHE (84) (84)
Dividend income from listed investments _ 1% & % 8 Uk A (355) (734)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BB AR M EE

31 March 2006 —ZEZEXFE=HA=+—H

PROFIT BEFORE TAX (conminueD)

Notes:

* The amortisation of trademarks and deferred development costs
for the year are included in “Selling and distribution costs” and
“Cost of sales”, respectively, on the face of the consolidated
income statement.

o As at 31 March 2006, the Group had no forfeited contributions
available to offset its future employers’ contributions (2005: Nil).

Interest on: M TANEE XN Z2HE
Bank loans and facilities wholly ARAFAZEER
repayable within five years WIRTTERREE
Finance leases BMEMHES

6.

R 4 Bl e ()

Kz

* AN [ B P AR B S B JR P AR 4 55 0
FPARBRA SR Z [HHE RO HKA] K&
[SHERA] -

o RIBRXRE=ZR=+-—H AEEY
EERWMHR (ZEZRF : T) Al
REEEAEENEEHAR -

BE R AR

HK$°000 HKS$'000
EBETT BETFT
21,547 12,432
1,602 318

23,149 12,750

N ' b
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RS ERAR MR

31 March 2006 —ZEZEXHE=HA=+—H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

Directors’ remuneration for the year, disclosed pursuant to the
Listing Rules and Section 161 of the Companies Ordinance, is

as follows:

8. EXME

AEEESNMESRE EMRARAA
BB E 16 HETEBINT ¢

Fees &

Other emoluments: Efbh B &
Salaries, allowances e R
and benefits in kind Bt F

Commission ik
Pension scheme contributions RIRSEHEI R

(A) INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The fees paid to independent non-executive directors

during the year were as follows:

HK$'000 HK$000
BETT BT T
655 378
11,196 11,106
1,694 787
562 538
13,452 12,431
14,107 12,809

(A) BYFHTES

ENENTBIERGES NS
m -

Ho Fook Hong, Ferdinand fa] 18 BR
Pang Hon Chung ZES
Cheng Tsang Wai IR

There were no other emoluments payable to the
independent non-executive directors during the year
(2005: Nil).

HK$°000 HK$°000
BET T BEFT
88 65

91 65

88 33

267 163

FALEEN TEILIFRTERE ZEHM
FM(—ZTRF &) -
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31 March 2006

8. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

(CONTINUED)

(B) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND A
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

2006

Executive directors:
Ling Siu Man, Simon
Lee Ka Yue, Peter
Wong Ki Cheung
Li Fung Ching, Catherine
Au Wai Man
Liu Hoi Keung, Gary
Lam Kwai Wah

Non-executive director:
Wong Wai Kwong, David

ROBEEZRERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR Y EE

—E2AE=A=1-8

8. EEME »

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits

Pension
scheme

(B) BIITESERFHUTES

Total

Fees in kind Commission contributions remuneration
A= Bk

we REVER e TR BEd
HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000
EETFIT BEFT BEFT BB T BEFT

“EERE

HITES :
DX - 3,888 = 194 4,082
A - - - - -
HHE - 1,944 - 97 2,041
ZRB = 1,944 = 97 2,041
BER = 1,620 = 81 1,701
2R - 1,620 = 8l 1,701
MHEE 300 180 1,694 12 2,186
300 11,196 1,694 562 13,752

FHTES

HEKX 88 = = = 88
388 11,196 1,694 562 13,840

N i b



2006 ! Annual Report

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

ROBXEZERBRAF
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31 March 2006 —ZEZEXHE=HA=+—H

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 8. EEME »
(CONTINUED)
(B) EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS AND A (B) BITRIHMITESE (8
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR
(CONTINUED)
Salaries,
allowances Pension
and benefits scheme Total
Fees in kind Commission contributions remuneration
e 2R BiRe
ne RENEF e HEES B e
HKS$'000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000
BETFTT BEFTT BEF T BEFTT BEF T
2005 “ETHF
Executive directors: WiTES:
Ling Siu Man, Simon DN - 3,888 - 195 4,083
Lee Ka Yue, Peter &) - - = = =
Wong Ki Cheung HHE = 1,944 = 97 2,041
Li Fung Ching, Catherine ZEA = 1,944 = 97 2,041
Au Wai Man BER - 1,620 = 81 1,701
Liu Hoi Keung, Gary B - 1,620 - 68 1,688
Lam Kwai Wah i 150 90 787 - 1,027
150 11,106 787 538 12,581
Non-executive director; EHTES
Wong Wai Kwong, David BEKX 65 - - - 65
215 11,106 787 538 12,646
There was no arrangement under which a director FRN - SEFUEELREXRE
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during WMEEMM L -
the year.
= 3t =
FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. I UBREHES

The five highest paid employees during the year included four
(2005: five) directors, details of whose remuneration are set
out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration of the
remaining one (2005: Nil) non-director, highest paid employee
for the year are as follows:

FR - ANBRFRERERENMNG (ZTT
AF:RAMESE  FHERSHETER
REXKIFES FR BT —%& (ZFT
TF B BRFIEFEEZHEFE
BT
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31 March 2006 —EZEXREFE=A=+—

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES

(CONTINUED)

RS ERAR MR

Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind #r & ~ A M E YR 25

Pension scheme contributions

BREHR

The number of non-director, highest paid employees whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

Nil to HK$ 1,000,000

HKS$1,000,001 to HKS 1,500,000
HKS$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000

TAX

Z % 1,000,000/ 7T

=i

9. VGBS HEE »

Group
AEE

HK$'000
EBEFIT

2,000
12

HK$'000
BETFIT

2,012

FHNTUATHEZESFHIFEESREE
ZEWMT :

Number of employees

BEHE

1,000,001/ 7t = 1,500,0007% 7T -
1,500,001 7T £ 2,000,000 7T -
2,000,0017 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T 1

10.

Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 17.5%
(2005: 17.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising in
Hong Kong during the Year. Taxes on profits assessable
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing
in the countries in which the Group operates, based on
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.

Group:
Current — Hong Kong
Charge for the year
Overprovision in prior years
Current — Elsewhere
Charge for the year
Deferred (note 29)

Tax charge/|(credit) for the year

KEH :

BNEf — &
AEELZH
BEFEBAES

B HR — E Ath iy [
REELZH

BIE (ffa£29)

AEEHREAXE(HKER)

BiIE

FENGHBREBLVEAFERELRR
ZEFTERTUEM AT T 1750 (=T

R 17.5%)FE o

Hib iR 2 fEERH

m A B IR TR B AN R B LS XI5 PR
RZBEEED - BRBEREIRE HES

BiEHH -

HK$°000 HKS'000
BETFT BT T
(Restated)

(&75))

1,528 713
(751) (1,235)
1,319 6
(2,197) 2,200
(101) 1,684

N i b
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31 March 2006

10. TAX (continuED)

MR MR

~E=ZRA=1+—H

—EE

— ==

10. I8 (&)

A reconciliation of the tax charge/(credit) applicable to profit

before tax using the statutory rates for the countries in which

the Company, and its subsidiaries are domiciled to the tax

charge/(credit) at the effective tax rate, and a reconciliation of

the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory tax rate) to the effective

tax rate, are as follows:

Group

ROBXEZERERDE

RN ER AT M R A A R E R EHE
REAMEBERZEEREFEZREX
7 (BRUE %) BB BB R E 2T
A (B R) <8 - ARERA

T

REME

BEBUAERER) BERB X Z HERD

Profit before tax

Tax at the statutory tax rate
Higher tax rate for other countries
Profit not subject to tax,
due to concession
Adjustments in respect of
current tax of previous periods
Income not subject to tax
Expenses not deductible for tax
Tax loss utilised from
previous periods
Tax loss not recognised
Deferred tax not recognised,
due to concession
Others

Tax charge/(credit) at
the Group’s effective rate

B B A1 A

BAERERFAEZHE
HBR s RSHE
ARBERMEE
SR 2 ) R

PR BRI IR
fE i 38 2
BRARBBA
Rk
NEHEE A
ZHBER
AERZBIBRER
AHHEEMAER
ZEFETIA

Hity

BAGKEERMEGE
Zx W/ (BER)

HK$'000 % HKS$'000 %

BETT BT

(Restated)

(251)

18,509 29,538
3,239 17.5 5,169 17.5
346 1.9 459 1.6
(2,795) (15.1) (1,539) (5.2)
(751) (4.1) (1,235) (4.2)
(1,728) (9.3) (3,802) (12.9)
4,986 26.9 1,968 6.7
(1,386) (7.5) (85) (0.3)
383 2.1 1,289 4.4
(2,794) (15.1) (643) (2.2)
399 2.2 103 0.3
(101) (0.5) 1,684 5.7
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B AR Y EE

—EE

— ==

31 March 2006

11. NET PROFIT/(LOSS) FROM

12

13

ORDINARY ACTIVITIES
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE COMPANY

The net loss from ordinary activities attributable to equity
holders of the Company for the year ended 31 March 2006
dealt with in the financial statements of the Company was
HKS$11,092,000 (2005: net profit of HK$39,770,000) (note
32(b)).

DIVIDENDS

NE=

A=+-—
11.

12.

A
NI

ES

RERANE

H%
M, (BE) FE

%ﬁ#

Eﬁ%

Sl

RRARIRFERREEHZE ST NF
“A=+—HLEFENRRABRAFEA
JERE B EKEEFEEA1,092,000%8

Proposed final — HK1 cent

(2005: HK1 cent) per ordinary share 1 (=
The proposed final dividend for the year is subject to the
approval of the Company’s shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting.

EARNINGS PER SHARE
ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY
EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE
COMPANY

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders of
the Company of HK$18,610,000 (2005 (restated):
HKS$27,854,000) and the 952,889,962 (2005: weighted
average of 706,413,187) ordinary shares in issue during the

year.

Diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 March 2006
and 2005 has not been disclosed as the share options
outstanding during these years had an anti-dilutive effect on

the basic earnings per share of these years.

BT R B 8 — B0 A
TEHF

178 4L)

13.

T (ZEZRF : mA/F539,770,00078
7o) (FfsE32(b)) °
’RE
HK$°000 HKS 000
BT T B F T
9,529 9,529

AEEHRRKAKRSBFARARRRRE
ERERRBEASHERTAEE -

%&¢%ﬁk@ﬁ

NI

Gk
BRE

BRERNBIDEREAFER

B AEGET 18,610, ooo,%rc(
FE(EF) : 27,854,000 ) RAEE
0 %17 & B 952,889,962/ (Z T T h
F TR ET706,413,1878%) &t

s
H o
=57

iR A
z

z

HRERE _ZTERFR_ZTTRF=
A=+t BLEFERRTENBEREY
FEFENBRENBNAREEE
B BUERBEZSFREZ2ERETR
A o

N n b
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B AR Y EE

31 March 2006 —ZEZEXHE=HA=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 1. % - BERZE
EQUIPMENT
rEE
Group
Leasehold  Furniture
Construction  improve- and Equipment Motor
Buildings in progress ments fixtures and tools  vehicles Moulds Total
HE B
BF HEIR N¥EE REE HRERIA RE Ba @t
HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000
AT  BETT  EEFm  B¥Tn  AETrn  AETn AMTn  AErx
31 March 2006 “BERE
=ZA=t-H
At 31 March 2005 and i
at | April 2005: ZAEt-BkK
“ZTRF
MA-H:
Cost or valuation KA (EE 242,506 56,984 100,155 29705 414791 11,450 166,070 1,021,661
Accumulated depreciation ZitiE - - [39922)  (22329)  (201,13¢) (9,045 (120,578  (393,010)
Net carrying amount ERFE 242,506 56,984 60,233 7376 213,655 2,405 45492 628,651
At 1 April 2005, net of RZTERE
accumulated depreciation mA-A"
BARZ:HE 242,506 56,984 60,233 7376 213,655 2,405 45492 628,651
Additions hE 7,893 31,099 3,174 1,994 16,099 - 16,387 76,646
Disposals e - - 2) (49) (856] (20) (5,991 (6,918
Depreciation provided ERREZNE
during the year (9,991 = (8,890 (1872 (29,270) (625  (19.452)  (70,100]
Exchange realignment R 3,084 1,109 204 13 413 2 16 4,841
At 31 March 2006, net of RZBERE
accumulated depreciation =A=t-R:
EMBEHHE 243,492 89,192 54,719 7,462 200,041 1,762 36,452 633,120
At 31 March 2006: RZEE/RE
=ZA=1+-8H:
Cost or valuation KA (EE 253,483 89,192 103,910 31,445 426,850 9484 173825 1,088,189
Accumulated depreciation ZiriE 9,991 - 49,191)  (23,983)  (226,809) (1,722)  (137,373)  (455,069)
Net carrying amount BEFE 243,492 89,192 54,719 7,462 200,041 1,762 36,452 633,120
Analysis of cost or valuation: AR EEAT :
At cost BRAE 7,893 89,192 103,910 31,445 426,850 9484 173825 842,599
At 31 March 2005 valuation R-ZZH%E
=R=+-AR
L ffE 245,590 - - - - - - 245590
253,483 89,192 103,910 31,445 426,850 9484 173825 1,088,189
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B # SRk Y =
31 March 2006 —ZEZEXRF=ZA=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. % -  BERRKRE @
EQUIPMENT conminuep)

Group N EH
Leasehold  Furniture
Construction  improve- and Equipment Motor
Buildings in progress ments fixtures  and tools  vehicles Moulds Total
HKS'000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS'000
A& B

BF ERIR NXEE  REXE RERIA nE B& At
BT E¥TT  E¥Tn  BETn  RETn  A%Tn EETn ERETR

31 March 2005 R-2%1f%
ZA=t-A
At 1 April 2004: RZZERF .
mA—H: §
Cost or valuation A B 187,978 72,69 56,903 21523 322,241 12,853 147,974 828,168
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE (6,669 - [31,870) (20585 (174,485 (10,012  (95409)  (339,030) -
Net carrying amount KA 181,309 72,696 25,033 6,938 147,756 2,841 52,565 489,138
At 1 Aprl 2004, net of R-EERE =
accumulated depreciation MA—R
BB 2HHE 181,309 72,696 25,033 6,938 147,756 2,841 52565 489,138
Additions RE 21,106 13,476 40,722 2,169 93,672 718 18306 190,169
Disposals e = = [211) (164) (1,815 (511) 79) (2,780]
Surplus on revaluation BHAH 23,994 - - - - - = 23,994
Depreciation provided ERREZNE
during the year (7,244) = (8,275) (1932)  (28,194) (935 (25300  (71,880)
Transfers B 23,341 (29,188] 2,959 362 2,234 292 = =
Exchange realignment R AT - = 5 3 2 - = 10
At 31 March 2005, net of RZZTHE
accumulated depreciation =ERE=F "
BB RHE 242,506 56,984 60,233 7376 213,655 2,405 45492 628,651
At 31 March 2005; RZZTHE
=A=1t-H
Cost or valuation: KA E 242,506 56,984 100,155 29705 414791 11,450 166,070 1,021,661
Accumulated depreciation ZiHE - - (39922) (22329 (201,13¢) (9,045 (120,578)  (393,010)
Net carrying amount REFE 242,506 56,984 60,233 7376 213,655 2,405 45492 628,651

Analysis of cost or valuation: RAFEEH T -

At cost RRAE - 56,984 100,155 29705 414791 11,450 166,070 779,155
At 31 March 2005 valuation ~ R-EEEAE
ZAZT-HZRE 242,506 - - - - - - 242,506

242,506 56,984 100,155 29,705 414,791 11,450 166,070 1,021,661
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B # SRk Y =
31 March 2006 —ZEZERF=A=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. % - BERZE w
EQUIPMENT conminuep)

Tonic Industries Holdings Limited

AEBBFREATHORES :

The Group’s buildings were held under the following lease

terms:
Mainland

Hong Kong China Total
B H 5t
HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
BT T BT T BT T

At valuation: LA :
Held under long term leases RERHABNEE 259 = 259
Held under medium term leases BRHPEBBENRFE 9,082 234,151 243,233
9,341 234,151 243,492

BAFRAREESIN  AEENEBTHH

The Group's buildings, other than the current year's additions,

were revalued at 31 March 2005 by Sallmanns (Far East)
Limited, an independent firm of professional valuers, on an
open market, existing use basis at HK$242,506,000. No
professional valuation of such buildings was made as at 31
March 2006 because the directors are of the opinion that the
carrying amounts of such buildings at 31 March 2006 are not
significantly different from the carrying amounts at 31 March
2005 and that a further professional valuation would involve
expense out of proportion to the values to the shareholders of
the Company.

No professional valuation of the current year’'s additions of
buildings was made as at 31 March 2006 because the directors
are of the opinion that the carrying amounts of such buildings
as 31 March 2006 are not significantly different from the
carrying amounts as 31 March 2006.

Had the whole class of the Group’s buildings been carried at
cost less accumulated depreciation, they would have been
included in the financial statements at approximately
HK$ 172,464,000 (2005 (restated): HKS171,291,000).

Included in the total amount of equipment and tools at 31
March 2006 are assets held under finance leases with a net
book value of HK$34,635,000 (2005: HK$47,152,000).

B BEMGERMARN (BR) BRAAR
—EERFE=A=1+—HARERAHAT
LHIE G A% E /242,506,000 T °
R-EEXFZA=Z+—BUEHZSE
BFETIEGE WIOHRESR
B R-_BETESNF=ZA=1+—8 %%
BFrEREE_TSTRAF=A=1+—
AzEEELHEEAEZE  mMAE—
BEGMEMPRIAIHARTRREZ
BEYLTERE -

RERNRBEZEFUER_ZTZTF=
A=T—HETHEEME  HIHARE
ERR REEFTR_ZETREF=ZA=
T-—HZEEEER-ZETEEF=A=
T—HBZEEBELTEEAER

fisl 78 &= B 2 P48 RIS FHR A AN R 2 5HT
EARR - BIZEBERIZA 172,464,000
BT (ZEZTRF (FF]) ¢ 171,291,000
ETT) st AR K o

RZEERNFZA=Z+—HNXERT
B85 045 R F 8 534,635,000 7T

A
| I

TZTAE : 47,152,000/8 7T) IREEE

>

i

i
Wy
FW

o
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B # SRk Y =
31 March 2006 —ZEZEXRF=ZA=+—H

14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND 14. % - BERRKE @
EQUIPMENT conminuep)

As detailed in note 33l(ii), deposits for the acquisition of items AR FE33(i) P AF Al - AR EY E - B
of property, plant and equipment of HK$1,715,000 (2005: BERZEEBEB/EI£1,715000% 7T (=
HK$33,140,000) were utilised as part of the considerations TT R4 : 33,140,000/ 7T) E AES AT
paid for the purchases of items of property, plant and BEZEME BERZXBEENTS
equipment. KB -

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. FE{T Lt E ;K1\

Group
rEH

HK$°000 HKS$000
BT T BT T
(Restated)
(E75)
Carrying amount 1 April R A—HZRHEAE
As previously reported A 2 Al B 3R - -
Effect of adopting HKAS 17 RNBE B G AR
(note 2.4(a)) FIIR 2T E (W it2.4(a) 45,369 29,873
As restated E] 45,369 29,873
Additions NE - 16,234
Recognised during the year F AR (761) (738)
Exchange realignment RS 190 =
Current amount at 31 March =A=+—HA8HEE 44,798 45,369
Current portion B AR 36193 (9,521) (9,424)

Non-current portion 3F B A &6 19 35,277 35,945

N ‘ b
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B # SRk Y =
31 March 2006 —ZEZEXRF=ZA=+—H

15. PREPAID LAND LEASE PAYMENTS 15. B{F Lt FH E K\ o)

(CONTINUED)
The Group's leasehold lands were held under the following REBZHEELHTIRUATHNRFE :
lease terms:
Mainland
Hong Kong China Total
B s st
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$'000
BT T BT T BT T
Held under long term leases BRERBAMENFES 2,089 = 2,089
Held under medium term leases RHPRBLORE 15,999 26,710 42,709
18,088 26,710 44,798
At 31 March 2006, the Group is applying for land use right R-ZFEERF=A=+—8 " A&£BEIE
certificates in respect of certain of the Group's leasehold land BETRAEZHE - R E TR
in Mainland China. These lands had an aggregate net book BE - ZETHMZEAFEGRN A
value of approximately HKS$S15,716,000 (2005: 15,716,000 5t (= & T A &

HK$ 18,085,000). 18,085,000 ) ©
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR Y EE

31 March 2006 —ZEEARF=A=+—H

16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 16. B EE
Group &
Software Deferred
development development
costs Trademarks cost Total
g R
BRRA L D% gt
HKS000 HKS000 HKS000 HKS$'000

BET T BET T BET T BETT

31 March 2006 —EERF
=A=+—-H
Cost at 1 April 2005, net “ETREMA—H
of accumulated amortisation ZHA - Bk E
HEEE] = 1,254 12,216 13,470
Additions NE 316 117 8,072 8,505
Amortisation provided FREHERE
during the year (32) (255) (4,455) (4,742)
At 31 March 2006 —EEXRE
=A=+—H 284 1,116 15,833 17,233
At 31 March 2006 ZERTREF
=A=+—H
Cost DN 316 2,625 31,995 34,936
Accumulated amortisation RET#H (32) (1,509) (16,162) (17,703)
Net carrying amount REFE 284 1,116 15,833 17,233
31 March 2005 —EZTRF
=A=+—-H
Cost at 1 April 2004, net of “ETNEMNA—H
accumulated amortisation ZEA - Bk
g - 1,608 8,656 10,264
Additions NE = 34 7,974 8,008
Disposals & - (128) - (128)
Amortisation provided FRHERE
during the year = (260) (4,414) (4,674)
At 31 March 2005 —ZEERE
=A=+—H = 1,254 12,216 13,470
At 31 March 2005 —TTREF
=A=+—H
Cost [N - 2,508 23,923 26,431
Accumulated amortisation ESE §= - (1,254 (11,707) (12,961)

Net carrying amount REFE - 1,254 12,216 13,470
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31 March 2006 —ZEZEXHE=HA=+—H

17. GOODWILL

—n
00

As detailed in note 2.5 to the financial statements, the Group
applied the transitional provisions of HKFRS 3 that permitted
goodwill in respect of business combinations which occurred
prior to 2001, to remain eliminated against the consolidated
reserves.

The amount of the goodwill remaining eliminated against the
consolidated retained profits, arising from the acquisition of a
subsidiary prior to 1 April 2001, was HK$2,000 as at 31 March
2006 (2005: HKS2,000).

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Unlisted shares, at cost FEmBRMHKKAE
Due from subsidiaries TN ERNGIDNE

The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-
free and have no fixed terms of repayment. The carrying
amounts of the amounts due from subsidiaries approximate to
their fair values.

17.

kS

AN TS ERR M TE 2. 5P RE A - R E
P& 8 B 75 35 Y Bl 26 357 /O3B R 1 &
X RHARET-FHNEBA MM
EENBELEERREHEBYHE -

RZZTERE=ZR=+—H KR=EZT
—FMA—BzaEKE —BHERQ A
FTE £ W B RS REHFEHOME
EHFA2,0008 T (ZEZTHF : 2,000
HBIT) °

R B~ B R
The Company
AT

HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET
58,812 58,812
162,256 196,297
221,068 255,109

MBRARRREHRTIEER 28 B
BEETERY - MEARRRZEEE
HERNFERE -
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

(CONTINUED)

B 75 ¥ R B

—E2AE=A=1-8

18. R B A Rl &= )

31 March 2006

Particulars of the subsidiaries are as follows:

Agility Investments
Limited

Dongguan Gold Beam
Electronics Co., Ltd.”
RESRET
BR QA

Dongguan Tonic
Electronics Co., Ltd.”
RERNET
BR QA

Gold Beam Developments

Limited
EHRERERAA

Tonic Appliances Limited

ROIZAEFEERLDA

Tonic Electronics
(B.V.1.) Limited

Place of
incorporation/
registration
and operations
MR
BREREXEER

British Virgin Islands
RERIES

Mainland China
H B

Mainland
China
B

Hong Kong
BB

Hong Kong
£

British Virgin Islands
RERIES

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

Nominal value
of issued/
registered

paid-up capital

2R/ i
HERAEE

Sy
(E

HK$22,220,000
22,220,000/ 7T

HKS$63,543,484
63,543,4847 7T

HKS2
28T

HKS2
28T

HKS 1
18T

HEARFENT

Percentage
of equity
attributable

to the Company

Direct

BEE

100

PN K
BREBR L
Indirect

%

100

= 100

100

100

100

Principal
activities

FTEEH

Investment holding

REER

Manufacture of
electronic
components and
home appliance
products

REETRHRRE
EREMm

Manufacture of
electronic products
YEBETES

Trading and
manufacture
of components

BEREETMH

Trading of home
appliance products
BEXEEREM

Investment holding

REERK

0
~N
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B # SRk Y =
31 March 2006 —ZEZERF=A=+—H

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES 18. R B AT #ER @)

(CONTINUED)
Place of Nominal value Percentage
incorporation/ of issued/ of equity
registration registered attributable  Principal
Name and operations paid-up capital to the Company  activities
MR, B#T M ARA T
D F BREREXEH HERAEE BREFIL TEXK
Direct Indirect
BEE LF:3
Tonic Electronics Hong Kong Ordinary = 100  Trading and
Limited N HK$200 manufacture of
RNAEFERADA Non-voting electronic products
deferred”” EERBETFEM
HK$300,000
&A% 20078 T
ERFR
T fix £ ##
300,000/ 7T
Tonic Digital Hong Kong HKS 100 = 100 Trading of
Products Limited* BB 10078 7T digital products
ROBIBEmS BEEHEEM
BRAR
Tonic Enterprises British Virgin Islands ussS1 = 100 Holding of
Limited REBELHS 1£7T patents
RERR
Tonic International British Virgin Islands/ HKS0.01 = 100 Provision of
Limited Mainland China 0.01% T quality control
RERLEHS/ services
B 1R A Am 12 15 AR 75
Tonic Investment British HKS0.01 = 100 Investment holding
(B.V.I.) Limited Virgin Islands 0.01B 7T REER
KBRELES
Tonic Marketing British Virgin Islands UsS$0.01 = 100 Investment holding
Limited EBELES 0.01%7T RERER
Panatone Licensing British Virgin Islands ussi = 100 Holding of patents
Limited RERIES 1E7T REARE
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ROBEEZRERAT

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B 75 ¥ R B

—E2AE=A=1-8

31 March 2006

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)

Name

>
all

Tonic DVB
Marketing Limited
(Formerly Tonic
Plastic Limited)
(A1 7% [Tonic
Plastic Limited] )

Tonic Trading
Development Limited

RNBEBRAEBR AR

Tonic Technology
Limited

RAMBERAT

Panatone Licensing
Limited

Tonic Technology
(Shenzhen) Ltd*
RAOBMB(FINER

AR

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued/
registration registered

and operations paid-up capital

MR L BR#fT /i
BREREXEEH HRERAEE
British Virgin Islands/ Us$0.01

Mainland China 0.01% 7T
ERELES/

/f
Hong Kong HKS 100
B 1007 7T
Hong Kong HKS$ 10,000
£ 10,0008 7T
British Virgin Islands ussSi
RERLES E

Mainland China RMB15,400,000
& 15,400,000 A R #&

18. R B A Rl &= )

Percentage

of equity
attributable

to the Company
ARATRfE

RES DL

Direct Indirect

B F:3

= 100

= 100

100 =

= 100

= 100

Principal
activities

TEEH

Trading of electronic
products

BEEEFEmM

Trading of electronic
products and
components

BEEETEMMEH

Investment holding,
manufacture
and trading of
electronic products
and components
REARR WEREE
ETERRTH

Holding of patents

RERR

Research and
development and
trading of
electronics products

MR RELEE
BfEm
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
B AR Y EE

31 March 2006

18. INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES

(CONTINUED)
Place of Nominal value

incorporation/ of issued/

registration registered

Name and operations paid-up capital
ML, B8 M

AT BREREERE BRRAEE

Dongguan Xin Lian
Digital Technology

HK$9,000,000
9,000,0007& 7T

Mainland China

G

Co. Ltd*
REEBHBHNEK
ARAR

##

Not audited by Ernst & Young Hong Kong or other Ernst &

Young International member firms.

Wholly-foreign-owned enterprise.

The non-voting deferred shares carry the right to one-half of
the profits after the holders of the ordinary shares have received
a dividend of HKS 1,000,000,000,000, have no right to vote at
general meetings and carry the right to receive one-half of the
balance of any surplus in a return of capital in a winding up
after the holders of the ordinary shares have received a total
return of the HK$S500,000,000,000,000. None of the non-voting
deferred shares was held by members of the Group at the
balance sheet date.

—E2AE=A=1-8

18. R B A Rl &= )

to the Company

Direct

B

Percentage
of equity
attributable  Principal
activities
A AR fE
RER DL

Indirect

F:3

TEEH

100 Manufacture of

electronic products
YEETER

I FF i 22K B At D F AT (B E) 2 22k
Bat A0 EH AT (BE) B ik R 2 7] &

}Z o

D

R ZRIEERGIFEA A EZHERE
A AUYE1,000,000,000,000 & T R B 1%
B —FEF  BEERREXE
RE - BRI A E E B IR 5 A W
iR [B] &K 48 8500,000,000,000,000 57T
1% Y BR (T fa] 28 B4 1 — S B B (E 73 4R [B] fR
X FREBHERNAIREEAHERFE
FRZEBELRG -
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BB AR M EE

31 March 2006 —ZEZEXFE=HA=+—H

19. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE 19. I HERE
INVESTMENTS
Group Company
xE AT

HK$'000  HKS000  HK$'000  HKS'000
BETT BETT EEFTT EETT

Unlisted equity investment, at cost ~ JE_ E IR ANIEE -

BRAE 24,366 - 24,366 -
Less: Provision for impairment R E B (11,110) - (11,110) =
13,256 -~ 13,256 - N
o
o
(o)}
Club debentures, at fair value g8ESF RATE 963 963 - - -
14,219 963 13,256 =
_FH
A s, \ %‘
The above investments were designated as available-for-sale PR ER_ZZRFHA — AR
financial assets on 1 April 2005 and have no fixed maturity HEECHEERTEREIHARE
date or coupon rate. [Ep
The unlisted available-for-sale equity investment, whose fair FELEHAIEEERNIEE 2 A FERE
value cannot be measured reliably, has been stated at cost AISEHETE - T BARK AN (B RR (B B 18 5]
less impairment losses. Bk o
=+
20. OTHER RECEIVABLE 20. H ftb & YRR
The Group
AEH

HK$000 HKS'000

BT BB F T
Other receivable H fth jE U 5 E 6,264 23,759
Portion classified as current asset SHEARSEE BN (558) =
Non-current portion FE B EA & 1n 5,706 23,759
The balance at 31 March 2006 represents the proceeds RZZZERF=A=+—RAZHEHRKE
receivable from the disposal of items of property, plant and HEMSE - BERZHEEE (M EE33(ii)
equipment (note 33(iii)) and is carried at amortised cost (2005: Z BN PTG FIE - WIREE SHR AR B R (=

Nil). TERF | o
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RS ERAR MR

31 March 2006 —ZEZEXHE=HA=+—H

21. LOANS RECEIVABLE 21. EIRE

The loans receivable represents unsecured and interest-free
advances to a staff member of the Group and its carrying

amount approximates to its fair value.

The terms of the loans receivable are analysed as follows:

RUREFERTAEEE THEEKRSL
BEX MEKEERAQFERS -

EWE R ERAOMAT

The Group
KE

Repayable within one year —FANEER
Repayable by equal monthly —F(ZEZTRF - OF)A
instalments over three years BRAEHEESR

(2005: Four years)

Portion classified as current asset TIERE) B EI D

Non-current portion 3 B EA E6 5

HK$'000 HKS'000
BT T BT T
188 188
281 469
469 657
(188) (188)
281 469
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b EE e
31 March 2006 —ZEZEXRF=ZA=+—H

22. INVENTORIES 22. 78

Group
rEH

HK$000 HKS 000
BT T BB F T
Raw materials R# 158,583 97,099
Work in progress £ & m 134,587 100,441
Finished goods LURY 61,107 59,670
354,277 257,210
S
= ==
23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS 23. ER R RERE g
RECEIVABLE
o
The Group’s trading term with its customers is mainly on credit. REEGETEFPHN —RBREEHANTLE =
The credit period granted by the Group to customers generally =ThB FEXFPHNEERAUSEZAR +
ranges from 7 days to 35 days, extending up to 120 days for 1208 ° AN B ) sk 1 H R UL [E] fE W kIR -
major customers. The Group seeks to maintain strict control HISEREES  UREEERR o @88
over its outstanding receivables in order to minimise credit AEBREHSREEBTHEN - &
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior PR i R AR R B 2 AR R R R R
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that BRAMTFAEE IATESEANEE
the Group’s accounts and bills receivable relate to a large SR ZRERE -
number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.
An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts and bills receivable REENEEBRESE ARG ENER
as at the balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as BERRBREBERESTHT :

follows:

HK$’000 Percentage HKS'000 Percentage
BETFT Bolk BETT Bk

0 to 30 days TE=1H 140,346 50 136,923 60
31 to 60 days =+—Z=,~t+H 36,343 13 16,944 7
61 to 90 days AT—ZN+A 23,814 9 41,054 18
Over 90 days [ERcp R =! 76,924 28 32,900 15

277,427 100 227,821 100
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31 March 2006 —ZEZEXHE=HA=+—H

23. ACCOUNTS AND BILLS
RECEIVABLE conminuep)

The Group’s accounts and bills receivable are non-interest-
bearing and their carrying amounts approximate to their fair

values.

24. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR 24
VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
LOSS/OTHER INVESTMENTS

23. BEWEBRF N EE »

AEBEZERUEARERR RS RERK
HEEERAFEES -

BELTRAKRE  BHE

Listed equity investments in
Hong Kong, at market value

The above equity investments were classified as held for trading
at 31 March 2006.

In 2005, the Company changed its intention in holding the
investments from long term to short term purpose, resulting
in a net gain in transferring the long term investments into
other investments of HK$20,290,000.

HK$°000 HK$°000

BET T BETT

10,380 17,542
LRBEARFEER

SERARFZA=t—
AREEABIFEE -

R-ZZRF  ARARRBHEMSA
ZHREZER BmERAXRREY  &H
REBREMKEEE RS FHE
20,290,000/ JT, °
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BB AR M EE

31 March 2006 —ZEZEXFE=HA=+—H

25. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 25. E{JERM
An aged analysis of the Group’s accounts payable as at the REERNEERRESEASHGTENEN
balance sheet date, based on invoice date, is as follows: BRRERER DA T ¢
Group

HK$’000 Percentage HKS'000 Percentage
B F T BErk BEFT Bk

0 to 30 days TE=1H 164,073 37 96,630 36
31 to 60 days =+—Z%x+H 117,403 26 42,747 16
61 to 90 days AT—ZNT+A 42,881 10 42,791 16 N
Over 90 days [ERCp R =! 117,530 27 87,804 32 §
441,887 100 269,972 100 -
&
The accounts payable are non-interest-bearing and are FEHEE%’U%%E R—MR=+TZNTH i
normally settled on 30 — 90 days. The carrying amounts of the NEEF - BNERZEEEREL A TE =
accounts payable approximate to their fair values. BE
Ja=
26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 26. TTEMBTA
INSTRUMENTS
Group
rEHE

HK$000 HKS 000

BT BT T
Forward currency contracts at 31 March R= A=+ —BH ZRHPEK S 4 (1,496) -
The carrying amounts of forward currency contracts REERSN 2 REMBERRL QT EE

approximate to their fair values. ®
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31 March 2006 —ZEZEXHE=HA=+—H

26. DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL 26. TEMB LA =)
INSTRUMENTS conmnuep)
As detailed in note 2.2(b) to the financial statements, the AN SRR M sE2.2(b) Pt - AEE
Group has entered into various forward currency contracts to BAIMNEMERBERESAAEREIL R
manage its exchange rate exposures which did not meet the REL R ERGEZINERE - 3EH 4
criteria for hedge accounting. Changes in the fair value of BE¥OTHETE 2 AT EEE) 1,500,000
non-hedging currency derivatives amounting to HKS 1.5 million TERFRFAREER(ZZEZTRF
were charged to the income statement during the year (2005: =) o
Nil).
As at 31 March 2006, the Group had outstanding forward R=ZZERF=A=+—H0 ' A5EH
currency contracts with an aggregate notional amount of 42 E BB A526,000,0008 T (=ZF
approximately HK$526 million (2005: HK$285 million) to TR ¢ 285,000,000 7T) Z K FEE

N
~

hedge payables in US dollars. BB SR ERNETHRIE °

INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 27.:TESR TR EMEE
OTHER BORROWINGS
Effective
interest rate Maturity Group
BERF = (%) 2| 5 AEE

HK$’000 HKS$'000
BT T BT T
Current B 58
Finance lease payables A E RN RIE
(note 28 (ffat28) 4-69 2007
—ETLF 10,532 8,419
Bank loans — unsecured RITEH — EHER 5.4 -5.65 2007 48,333 141,697
—ERELF
Trust receipt loans ERBIREN 5.4-59 30 June 2006
—EREAF
~A=1+8 195,723 136,894
254,588 287,010
Non-current JE BN HA
Finance lease payables A& E RN RIE
(note 28) (Kt 7£28) 4-6.9 2010
—E-ZF 25,239 25,779
Bank loans — unsecured RITER— EHA 5.65 2010
—E—TF 181,000 161,834
206,239 187,613

460,827 474,623
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MR MR

31 March 2006

OTHER BORROWINGS conmnuep)

—E2AE=A=1-8

27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND

27. 5t BB ITREMEE @

Group
rEH

HK$°000 HKS'000
BETFT BT T
Analysed into: PaR =
Bank loans repayable: AR THFHEENRITER :
Within one year or on demand —F RN 244,056 278,591
In the second year EF-F 92,000 98,000
In the third to fifth years, inclusive F=FEFRF
(BREEMF) 89,000 63,834
425,056 440,425
Finance lease payables: B8 10 & R R
Within one year —F R 10,532 8,419
In the second year FE_F 10,396 6,919
In the third to fifth years, inclusive E=FZFLF (BEERMF) 14,843 18,860
35,771 34,198
460,827 474,623

As at 31 March 2006, all the Group’s bank borrowings were
secured by a corporate guarantee granted by the Company
and cross-corporate guarantees by certain subsidiaries and the
Company. As disclosed in note 37(c) to the financial
statements, under the terms of a loan agreement, the
chairman of the Company, Mr. Ling Siu Man, Simon, being
the single largest shareholder and is actively involved in the
management and business of the Group, is required to
interests in

maintain at least 40% of the beneficial

shareholdings in the Company.

R-ZTZRNE=ZA=+—8 " FEAE
ERRTEEYBHARAR O ERE
REETHEBAREARR R EHAEL
1R EH IR o 540 BF 75 R = T =
37()FTEEE - BEBEERBEER - A2
RIEREELXEEIERBE—HARRE -
VEBRL2BREENETERER AR
RABZFRERRZD40% °
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27. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND 27.:TERTTREMEE »
OTHER BORROWINGS conmnuep)

Other interest rate information: HAih AR EH -

Group
AEE

Fixed rate Floating rate Fixed rate  Floating rate
BEME IFBRNER EEME  EIHHX
HK$°000 HK$°000 HKS'000 HKS'000
BEFT  BEFR  EETT  EETT

Finance lease payables &t & 1 € R {5018 9,749 26,022 = 34,198
Bank loans - unsecured  $R1TE R — MK - 425,056 6,664 433,761
The carrying amounts of the Group’s bank and other AEBENBRTREMEE 2 RMEREE
borrowings approximate to their fair values. NFEEEE -
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28. FINANCE LEASE PAYABLES 28. R EH E FEN I
The Group leases certain of its plant and machinery for its AEBEHBESE THE RESIEXBLE
business. These leases are classified as finance leases and have EZR - ZEHANFNARERE - 8T
remaining lease terms ranging from one to five years. At 31 HENF—ZEZERFAE - RZTZTRF
March 2006, the total future minimum lease payments under ZSRA=+—H REEEERAMNRKE
finance leases and their present values were as follows: RESBEREBEOT :

Present value Present value
Minimum Minimum  of minimum of minimum
lease lease lease lease

payments payments payments payments

REHE REHEE

Group AEE EERAS BERS BiE BE
N
8
HK$°000 HKS'000 HK$°000 HKS'000 2
BEFT BT BETFT BT =
3
Amounts payable: ARTIIFHER - I
Within one year —£R 12,319 9,080 10,532 8,419 e
In the second year F_F 11,558 7,408 10,396 6,919
In the third to fifth years, E-EERE
inclusive (BREBEEWE) 15,671 19,500 14,843 18,860
Total minimum finance MERERE
lease payments HeBE 39,548 35,988 35,771 34,198
Future finance charges ARBEER (3,777) (1,790]
Total net finance lease REEERNRE
payables BEEFE 35,771 34,198
Portion classified as current JIEREAE
liabilities (note 27) B (Hat27) (10,532) (8,419)

Non-current portion (note 27) JEENERE A (ft5E27) 25,239 25,779
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29. DEFERRED TAX 29. 3 fE % 16
The movements in deferred tax liabilities and assets during the FARLEHBEBEREENESHOT :

year are as follows:

DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES EEHREEE
GROUP &g
2006
ZERRE
Accelerated tax Development Revaluation
depreciation costs of properties Total
MEBE T E EERN EfiYx @t
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000

BETT BETTT BETTT EETT

At 1 April 2005 RZZEZEREMA—A
As previously reported - 24,895 1,091 16,876 42,862
Prior year adjustments HEFENHRE 1283) = (4,340] 14,623
As restated Ex] 24,612 1,091 12,536 38,239
Deferred tax charged/(credited) FRR
to the income statement Wz MBR/ GEA) EEF B
during the year (note 10) (Fizz10) (5,388) 258 (116) (5,246)
Gross deferred tax liabilities EERBEELRE

At 31 March 2006 R-ZEERE=A=+—H 19,224 1,349 12,420 32,993
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29. DEFERRED TAX (conmnueD) 29. EEFIE (&)
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS FEEHRBEBEE
GROUP NEH

2006
—EERE

Loss available
for offset
against future

taxable profit Others Total
T 4 35 85
H&ERB
% R W 18 Ht st
HKS000 HKS000 HKS'000
BT BT T BT T %
(o)}
At 1 April 2005 RZZEZTRFMA—H 6,118 412 6,530
Deferred tax charged to the F ARz TR A
income statement during the EIETLIE (HfaF10)
year (note 10) (3,001) (48) (3,049) 5
Gross deferred tax assets at RZTERF=A=+—H
31 March 2006 B AR E T IR B EE AR 3,117 364 3,481
Net deferred tax liabilities at JiN TRF=A=+—H

—_=
31 March 2006 REERTE 8 & F58 29,512
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29. DEFERRED TAX (conminueD) 29. EERIE (&)
DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES EEHIEEE
GROUP RE
2005
—EThE
Accelerated tax  Development Revaluation
depreciation costs  of properties Total
k3
BETE EEAAR EAREES &5t
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS$000
BEFTT BT BETT BETFT
At 1 April 2004 RZZEENEMA—A
As previously reported Wz 7 2 3R 22,061 776 11,438 34,275
Prior year adjustments HEEERAE (489) - (1,891 [2,380)
As restated ER] 21,572 776 9,547 31,895
Deferred tax charged FRRBER MG
to the income statement RERBE (K 10)
during the year (note 10) 3,040 315 = 3,355
Deferred tax debited to equity FRMBREREAZ
during the year (as restated) ERXFHE (E5) = = 2,989 2,989
Gross deferred tax liabilities EEHEEEAES
At 31 March 2005 R-ZETREF=A=+—H 24,612 1,091 12,536 38,239
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29. DEFERRED TAX (conmnueD) 29. EEFIE (&)
DEFERRED TAX ASSETS FEEHRBEBEE
GROUP rEH

2005
—“ZERE

Loss available
for offset against

future taxable profit Others Total
AR A
B ERM
A B R Hi st
HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000
BEFT BETFT BETT
3
At 1 April 2004 R-ZZZEMNEMA—H 5,375 - 5,375 <
Deferred tax credited to the FARME R AL =
income statement during EERIE (Hiat10) w
the year (note 10) 743 412 1,155
B

Gross deferred tax assets at 31 March 2005 R-ZEZRF=A=1+—HH
BN BEERE 6,118 412 6,530

Net deferred tax liabilities at 31 March 2005 R-ZEZRF=A=+—HH

EXHEREFE 31,709
At 31 March 2006, there was no significant unrecognised R-_BEERF=ZA=+—8 " TERLAKX
deferred tax liability (2005: Nil) for taxes that would be payable SEETHBRAZRELRBFERMRZ
on the unremitted earnings of certain of the Group's MIEMAEERARAERELEREEE(ZE
subsidiaries as the Group has no liability to additional tax TREF &) REARMAKREELZSE
should such amounts be remitted. T HUEBIAHIEAE -
There are no income tax consequences attaching to the RNABNR AN T AR R 2 AR B PG B 2

payment of dividends by the Company to its shareholders. Z.
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30. SHARE CAPITAL

30. & &

Company
AT

Authorised: JETE ¢
1,200,000,000 1,200,000,0000%
(2005: 1,200,000,000) ordinary (ZZEZERF
shares of HKS0.10 each

Issued and fully paid: BEETEBRE
952,889,962 (2005: 952,889,962)

ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each

In 2005, a rights issue of one rights share for every two
existing shares held by members on the register of members
on 24 February 2005 was made, at an issue price of HK$0.20
per rights share, resulting in the issue of 317,629,987 shares
of HKS0.10 each for a total cash consideration, before
expenses, of HKS$63,526,000.

1,200,000,0004% ) & % @ &
0.107% 7T K X 38 A%

952,889,962 (=TT H 4 :
952,889,9620%) & i m &
0.107% 7T & I i A%

HK$ 000 HK$'000
BT T BT
120,000 120,000

95,289 95,289

RZZTRF  AREIRBTESREHE
BE 10 0.2078 T 2 (B % AR 5 5t
—EERF_A-tHAREAMEZ
PR+ 2 B ARIE B R (5 217 — R fit
B - EEREE1T317,629,9870% & M HE (&
0.108 Lz i&Hm - B RE (R
%) 563,526,000 TT ©
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30. SHARE CAPITAL continuep) 30. AR AN ()
A summary of the transactions in the Company’s issued share RARAEBITRAFTET 2R S
capital is as follows: me
Issued Share
Number of share premium
shares in issue capital account Total
(=& = IR 43
ROBE BITRA i B Bk &=t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT EETT

At 1 April 2004 R-_ZEZTWFMA—A 635,259,975 63,526 28,735 92,261
Rights issue AR 317,629,987 31,763 31,763 63,526
N
Share issue expenses % {2 E1TH X - - (1,400 (1,400 S
(o)}
At31 March 2005and R-_EZEHR&=A=+—H o
31 March 2006 k=TT EF=A=+—H 952,889,962 95,289 59,098 154,387 "
i
SHARE OPTIONS B R A
Details of the Company’s share option scheme are included in AN ) AR RE AT B 515 R B S R Y

note 31 to the financial statements. FE31 °
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the “Option
Scheme”) for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants who contribute to the success of the
Group’s operations. Eligible participants of the Option Scheme
include the Company’s executive directors or employees of
the Group. The Option Scheme became effective upon the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange on 16
October 1997 and, unless otherwise cancelled or amended,
will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of unexercised share options currently
permitted to be granted under the Option Scheme is an
amount equivalent, upon their exercise, to 10% of the shares
of the Company in issue from time to time. No option may be
granted to any one employee which, if exercised in full, would
result in the total number of shares already issued and issuable
to him/her under the Option Scheme exceeding 25% of the
maximum aggregate number of shares subject to the Option
Scheme at the time it is proposed to grant the relevant option
to such employee.

The exercise price of the share options is determined by the
directors and is equal to the higher of (i) the nominal value of
the shares; and (ii) a price, which is not less than 85% of the
average closing price of the Company’s shares on the Stock
Exchange for the five trading days immediately preceding the
date of grant of such options.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to dividends

or to vote at shareholders” meetings.

31. IR ET &8

RANRHAERESS ([ RES
Zl)  BEMZEHAEEELRRE
FTERMNEGEKR2EATIRHEEE KT
B BREGFEHAGERZBEALTBEAR
RAIPITESHAEEES - BRE
ERADARBRBR—ANEFE+T A+
BEBIA EMBER - REBUHHE
BTN ZETEIE A LB ERBAER - A
Hi 104 -

RIZEAREE B AT TREAEART
ERRERE LR BEREBBRER
TR AR R TNEEETRME10% °
fEER -2 EEREERE  ME2E
11EA BB B 5 S BUR 1B 16 A #E =t &
BERTRABETTZEEENRNA
g BRERIRLEHEBRETZE
BEZEHBRESIMSIEBRNEEH L
R25% AINERZEREER L ER
T o

BRETEEHESET  HEN T
BaE : (IRHEE k(i TERERRQ
AIRNEEEREEABERES AR
822 5 B 7£ 8 22 F7 79 T 359 W T (B 85%H)
B -

BERBYMETHREAZEREXAN
BRAEERRZERN -
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conmnuep) 31. BIREFE )

An option may be exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Option Scheme at any time from the date of acceptance
of the option by an employee or such later date as may be
fixed by the directors, to any date prior to the tenth anniversary
of such date, provided that the employee can only exercise a
maximum of 20% of the options granted to him in each 12-
month period following the commencement of the relevant
option period. The consideration to be paid by the employee
upon acceptance of a grant of options is HK$1.00.

With effect from 1 September 2001, the Stock Exchange
requires that the exercise price of options is at least the higher
of the closing price of the shares on the Stock Exchange on

FHEEFEEMNEREZANESA
BT REAHEEZABETFE
mE B IEARE  BERRBRERETED
BRRITEBRE  HERESEEHE
B A EAfE B 45 12 =81 218 A AR E AT 17
FHREZEHERBERERN20% - BEXE
ERBRL2ERERAEAINNORER
1.00/ 7T °

B-_ZTZ-FALA—HE BXHARTE
BERESETEEARTIREE : K
AR B H AR B 32 A RO W T (B R B 4D

_ o~ . o N

the date of grant and the average of the closing price of the EEERE BB AERS B EHRAm g
shares on the Stock Exchange for the five trading days MEHKME - BEAREAH - A4 -
immediately preceding the date of grant. Up to the date of ARZEE—FNA-—BRZEITER =
~N

this report, the Company has not granted any option on or
after 1 September 2001.

o A fe) i B -

3
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conmnuen, 31. BIRAERHE o)
The following share options were outstanding under the FA - EERESEIT RARITEOER
Option Scheme during the year: BT -
Number of
outstanding
share
options Date of Exercise Exercise
At 1 cancelled At 31 grant of period price
April during March share of share of share
2005 the year 2006 options options options*
FREHZ
R-B2HE RIERE R-BEAEF BhE BRE BRE
mA—H REZE =A=1+-8 BEAH TEH THRE
HKS
BT
Directors
Bz
Ling Siu Man, Simon 15,000,000 - 15,000,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
to 09-04-10
EDX ZTTTF CZTITTF
mA+H WmA+HEZE
—T-%F
MANB
Lee Ka Yue, Peter 2,715,000 - 2,715,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
to 09-04-10
Sl “TTTF -TTIF
MAtH WATHZE
i S a3
MA B
Wong Ki Cheung 2,715,000 - 2,715,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
to 09-04-10
BEHE “ZTTF —ZTITH
MA+tHE WATREE
—T-%F
MANA
Li Fung Ching, Catherine 2,715,000 - 2,715,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
to 09-04-10
R B ZTTTF CZTITTF
mA+H WmA+HEZE
—T%F
MAAB
Au Wai Man 2,715,000 - 2,715,000 07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
to 09-04-10
BEER “TTTF C—TITITF
MAtH WATHZE
i S a3

MANR
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME conminuep)

Number of

outstanding

share

options

At 1 cancelled

April during

2005 the year
FREHZ

R-ZZ2LF AT

=
31. B fET & )
Date of Exercise Exercise
At 31 grant of period price
March share of share of share
2006 options options options*
R-ZEERE BRE i8R BB E

mA—R REHE =ZA=t-H
Liu Hoi Keung, Gary 2,715,000 - 2,715,000
BR%
Lam Kwai Wah 1,650,000 = 1,650,000
MR
30,225,000 - 30,225,000
Other employees
In aggregate 40,050,000 (5,100,000 34,950,000
HifEg
At
70,275,000 (5,100,000) 65,175,000

* The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment
in the case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in

the Company’s share capital.

REAM TEH THRE"
HKS
BT

07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
to 09-04-10
“2TRF  —2E%F
mA+H WA+BZ
—T-%F
mANAE

07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
to 09-04-10
“2TFF  —TFEF
mA+H WA+BZ
—T-TF
mANAE

07-04-00 10-04-00 0.467
to 09-04-10
£ —TTTF
H @EAtHZ
—T-TF
mANA

e
mA+

BRECTEESBEEHRRIETA
B+ SR A B AR AN L A AR LB B B 4 5
# o
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31. SHARE OPTION SCHEME (conmnuep) 31. BIRAERHE o)

At the balance sheet date and the date of approval of these REERARAMBHRELERS - AQ
financial statements, the Company had 65,175,000 share AR AR B AR #E 5t 81 £ 5 65, 175,00008 7
options outstanding under the Option Scheme, which RNITEBIRE  EXRRRZERHAZ
represented approximately 6.8% of the Company’s shares in BEITRMHK6.8% - AR RREBRAE
issue at these dates. The exercise in full of the remaining share REMS  2EATER TERESEE
options would, under the present capital structure of the NN E)BE{TRESINGS, 175,000/% i 15+ I
Company, result in the issue of 65,175,000 additional shares 1538 B EE IR AR 6,517,5007% 7T K A& 19 S
of the Company and additional share capital of HK$6,517,500 B#4723,919,000%8 7t (RETHX) o

and share premium of approximately HK$23,919,000 (before

issue expenses).

32. RESERVES 32. %@
(a) GROUP (a) AEH

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in
the consolidated statement of changes in equity on
pages 38 in the financial statements.

The contributed surplus of the Group represents the
difference between the nominal value of the share
capital of the former holding company of the Group
acquired pursuant to the Group reorganisation to
rationalise the Group structure in preparation for the
listing of the Company’s shares on the Stock Exchange,
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued

in exchange therefor.

ARERANEE BB T2
RAEBEDUBRY B HREF6E
PN -1 DEELIE

AEBNBABRBEAEBERERE
AABRMEBIF EMMERR
SERBRETHEBEEAMEE
MR EBAMER AR X AEE - B
AR 2 R Rt 22 #7317 AR 4 T (B
HZERR °
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32. #1&E @

31 March 2006

32. RESERVES contminuep)

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
pursuant to the reorganisation referred to in note 32(a),
over the nominal value of the Company'’s shares issued
in exchange therefor.

Under the Companies Law (2002 Revision) of the
Cayman Islands, the share premium account of the
Company is available for distribution to shareholders,
subject to the provisions of the Company’s memorandum
or articles of association and provided that immediately
following the distribution of dividends, the Company is
able to pay its debts as and when they fall due in the
ordinary course of business. In the opinion of the
directors, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution represent the share premium account,

contributed surplus and retained profits.

RNRFH AR ERE N T
32(a)Fr it S 48 AT W B BT B A B 2 IR
MRFE - B AR R RM
BTRMEERNERE -

BRERSBHERARE(CEE_F
BRIA)  BRARBAEBERRZNE
FARNSBEREESN  ARAAH
B fn s (B RR A E DR T BOR - M1
HRARRRIZANZBEIRER &R
BEEREAREBEPIYNER -
EEZRR  ARE A KA
REEER - SRS MRS R
Gl

(b) COMPANY (b) &2 F]
Share
premium Contributed Retained
account surplus profits Total
1R 17 )5 18 f& HMARRR & B Al Bt
HKS$'000 HKS$000 HK$000 HKS$000
BT  EETIT  BETT  BETT
At 1 April 2004 —ZEMEMA—H 28,735 58,794 2,123 89,652
Issue of shares BIIRM 31,763 = = 31,763
Share issue expenses BIORMAX (1,400) - = (1,400)
Profit for the year AEERF - - 39,770 39,770
Proposed final 2005 dividend #EK=ZZTAFRBRKR - - (9.529) (9,529)
At 31 March 2005 and —ZTERF=A=+—H
at 1 April 2005 KZZZRFEMA—H 59,098 58,794 32,364 150,256 N
Issue of shares BT - - - - =
Share issue expenses BIIRMAX = = = =
Loss for the year AEEEE - - (11,092 (11,092)
Proposed final 2006 dividend #tE ZZ T NFRBIKE - - (9,529) 19,529)
At 31 March 2006 —EER E=A=+—H 59,098 58,794 11,743 129,635
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31 March 2006

33. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

During the year, the Group entered into finance lease
arrangements in respect of property, plant and
equipment with a total capital value at the inception of
the leases of HKS 12,138,000 (2005: HK$32,500,000).

During the year, deposits for the acquisition of items of
property, plant and equipment of HKS$ 1,715,000 (2005:
HK$33,140,000) part of the
considerations paid for the purchases of the items of
property, plant and equipment.

were utilised as

During the year, the Group disposed of an item of
property, plant and equipment for a consideration of
HK$8,607,500, of which HKS1,017,500 was received
during the year and the remaining balance of
HKS$7,590,000 was recorded as an other receivable at
amortised cost of HK$6,264,000 at 31 March 2006 (note
20).

34. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At the balance sheet date, contingent liabilities not provided

for in the financial statements were as follows:

—E2AE=A=1-8

3B.ZERERERKE

FEFERERS

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

FRN - AEERYE  BERZE
FIUBMERELRH - ReTu %M
B ZEVE - BERRENE
RABEA12,138,0008 L (ZFF
F4E ¢ 32,500,000/ 7T) °

FRN - BEWE BERRKEEE
Bl 41,715,000 T (ZEZH
F : 33,140,000/ L) E&BA -
ERBEYZE  BELRREEERN
FAHKAE -

FR - NEBEAKES 607,500
TEEWE  BERRHBER &
F 1,017,500 T B R F AWK
BY -+ ifi 8 5K 7,590,0007%8 7T Al LA =
EERNFZA=T—HZEHHERA
6,264,0007% 7T A AR 51 1 H fib & IR
KA (fiFE20) °

34. A ARAE &
REER » KRR IEHREPEEA KA

BEMT
Group Company
rEE AT

Guarantees for general banking

R A E N — K

facilities of subsidiaries* RITEEREER
Guarantees for the purchases — R B A A A

of a subsidiary R R
Shipping guarantees 75 2 IR

*

At 31 March 2006, HK$460,827,000 (2005: HKS471,304,000)

of the general banking facilities were utilised by the subsidiaries.

HK$'000 HKS000  HK$'000 HKS000
BEFRT EETT EETR  BETT
- - 1,292,175 1,197,325

- - 4,596 4,464

10,071 1,060 - -
10,071 1,060 1,296,771 1,201,789

R-ETNF=ZA=+—H  WEAA
EBAm—MIR1T15 B #73460,827,000
BT (ZFEZFTAHFE : 471,304,000
L) °
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77 M -

35. OPERATING LEASE 35. KEMHERH
ARRANGEMENTS
The Group leases certain of its properties under operating AEBREKEHERHFHERLETY
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are negotiated for ¥ -EHONBIFHENF —FN
terms ranging from one to four years. F o
At 31 March 2006, the Group had total future minimum lease R-ZTEEXE=ZA=+—8 XEEE
payments under non-cancellable operating leases falling due A REEEROTER T HE
as follows: MARREECEER :

HK$000 HKS 000 o
BMT T BT T 8
Within one year —F A 3,135 2,876 5
In the second to fifth years, inclusive E_ZERF (BEERMF) 3,962 6,517
_FH
7,097 9,393 e
At balance sheet date, the Company had no operating lease REER AR T EERMLEHER
arrangements (2005: Nil). H(ZZZTRE &) -
36. COMMITMENTS 36. &I
In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed in PR S 5E 35 R 5 Al 4% & FH & AR E SN
note 35 above, the Group had the following capital REEBREERB AT EARAEE
commitments at the balance sheet date:
Group
rEHE

HK$000 HKS 000
BT T B F T

Contracted, but not provided for: BRI HB KRB
Equipment and tools HERTA 3,748 205
Moulds B A 257 1,115

4,005 1,320
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37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS,
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS,
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

In addition to the transactions and balances detailed elsewhere

in these financial statements, during the year, the Group had

the following related party and connected transactions:

(@)

(b)

The Group sold audio and video products and related
components amounting to HKS$22,137,000 (2005:
HK$23,492,000) to Pioneer Ventures Limited (“PVL"), a
wholly-owned subsidiary of EganaGoldpfeil (Holdings)
Limited (“EG"), which is a substantial shareholder of the
Company.

The sales to PVL were made according to the published
prices and conditions offered to the other major
customers of the Group.

In the prior year, the Group paid HK$140,000 to
International Taxation Advisory Services Limited, of which
Mr. Wong Wai Kwong, David, a non-executive director
of the Company, is a director, for corporate advisory
services rendered to the Group.

During the year, the Group signed a term loan facility
agreement for syndicated loan. Under the terms of the
agreement, the chairman of the Company, Mr. Ling Siu
Man, Simon, being the single largest shareholder and is
actively involved in the management and business of
the Group, is required to maintain at least 40% of the

beneficial interests in shareholdings in the Company.

—E2AE=A=1-8
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(@)

(b)

NS B [ AN A ) 2E 2 AR SR BN B BR
S ([BMNERR]) /&K B A R
Pioneer Ventures Limited ([PVL]) H
EE(E22,137,0008 L (ZFZH
F : 23,492,000/ 7T) H) & 2 EAR
BEMRBBEZMH -

FPVLIA & & an IR B A B MR A
SEHEMIBZRPAEIRIETT -

PSRRIV S
Taxation Advisory Services Limited
(ARBIFATESTEELEET
ZARMESR) AANKEREHND
BRI 5219 140,000/8 7T °

#t International

FRN - AEEGREERELEH
f‘i?kmméﬁg%a% o IR - &K
NAIERELNEE (BAKTEE
M— R ARE REG2EAREER
EBRER) BHREARAFZRE
ZEBR R 40% °
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H
37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS, 37.FAEALTRE  BEIRS
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS, RiZEEERS »
AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS conmnuep)

o

(d) Compensation of key management personnel of the d AEEEXTZEZRABEHH
Group:

HK$000 HKS 000
BT BT T
Short term employee benefits % Hi & 8 12 A 13,545 12,271
Post-employment benefits Bt 58 1% 12 A 562 538
S
&
Total compensation paid to key BN EBEIE A B HHE%E
management personnel 14,107 12,809 <
vl
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in BEEM© 2 — FFFE NIRRT uil
note 8 to the financial statements. FE8 e =
The related party transactions in respect of items (a) and WA E(a) B R (b)EBEZEA TR 5ER LW
(b) above also constitute continuing connected RANEI4AZE Z R EMER A ER
transactions as defined in Chapter 14A of the Listing 2 °

Rules.
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments, other than
derivatives, comprise interest-bearing bank borrowings, finance
leases, and cash and bank balances. The main purpose of
these financial instruments is to raise finance for the Group’s
operations. The Group has various other financial assets and
liabilities such as accounts and bills receivable and accounts
payable, which arise directly from its operations.

The Group also enters into derivative transactions, principally
forward currency contracts. The purpose is to manage its
sources of finance and the currency risks arising from the
Group'’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are cash flow interest rate risk, foreign currency risk, credit risk
and liquidity risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised below.
The Group’s accounting policies in relation to derivatives are
set out in note 2.5 to the financial statements.

CASH FLOW INTEREST RATE RISK

The interest rates of the interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in note 27 to the
financial statements. The Group believes its exposure to cash
flow interest rate risk is minimal.

FOREIGN CURRENCY RISK

The Group has transactional currency exposures. Such
exposure arise from substantial portion of sales or purchases
by operating units in US dollars and RMB. The Group is
exposed to foreign exchange risk in respect of transactions in
US dollars and RMB. Considering that there is insignificant
fluctuation in the exchange rates of US dollars and RMB against
Hong Kong dollars, the Group believes its exposure to
exchange rate risk is minimal.

The Group constantly reviews the economic situation and its
foreign exchange risk profile, and considers implementing
appropriate hedging measures in future as may be necessary.

38. U KEREEEEREE
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (conminuep)

CREDIT RISK

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification
procedures. In addition, receivable balances are monitored on
an ongoing basis.

Since the Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy
third parties, there is generally no requirement for collateral.

LIQUIDITY RISK

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between
continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-

bearing bank and other borrowings.

The Group consistently maintains a prudent financing policy
and ensures that sufficient cash and credit lines are maintained

to meet the Group’s liquidity requirements.

COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS

As further explained in notes 2.2 and 2.4 to the financial
statements, due to the adoption of new HKFRSs during the
current year, the accounting treatment and presentation of
certain items and balances in the financial statements have
been revised to comply with the new requirements.
Accordingly, certain prior year and opening balance
adjustments have been made and certain comparative
amounts have been reclassified and restated to conform with
the current year's presentation and accounting treatment.

APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 18 July 2006.

38.

39.

40.
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A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years, as extract from the published
audited financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,
is set out below. The amounts for the three years ended 31 March
2004, 2005 and 2006 in the five year financial summary have been
adjusted for the effects of the retrospective changes in accounting

NTRASEBEREMBRFE2EE BE
REfEfRE - ﬁt%ﬁﬂ)’b%ﬁ@ﬂﬁﬁ"@%@
FsmE - UBEHEEES EHHE
FUBMEBABZE _TTWF - :%?gﬁi&
TEERF-A=THLE=ZEFENSED
REEWE  WHELRE  BNLwAER

policy affecting property, plant and equipment, prepaid land lease &TT,\H:'J%Z&QZ ATBUR B R 2%
payments, and available-for-sale investments, as detailed in note 2.2 BFHFE  FHEHRUBHHmREWNT2.2 -

to the financial statements.

RESULTS

E

Year ended 31 March
BE=

A=+-HLEEE

HK$°000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKSOOO* HKSOOO*
BEFT BEFT BETT AEFTr BETT*
(Restated) (Restated)
(E7) (E7)
REVENUE WA 2,392,219 2,636,294 2,074,140 2,680,277 2,013,623
PROFIT BEFORE TAX BR 3% A1 % Al 18,509 29,538 20,871 53,495 10,762
Tax I 101 [1,684) 5,575 (10,194) 12,499
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AE a7l 18,610 27,854 26,446 43,301 8,263
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 March
R=A=t—-8H

HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK5 ‘000* HKS ‘000*
BMTT BETR BETR BETT BETT
(Restated) (Restated)
(&31) (&31)
TOTAL ASSETS BEBR 1,520,653 1,337,608 1,452,896 1,123,775 912,573
TOTAL LIABILITIES BEEE (1,012,587)  (840,887) (1,063,997) (737,094  (551,830)
508,066 496,721 388,899 386,681 360,743
3 The amounts for the two years ended 31 March 2002 and 2003 were * HE—FTE - FR-_FE=—F=F="1—HIF

not restated/reclassified. The directors are in the opinion that amounts
for these two financial years were not materially affected by the effects
of the retrospective changes in accounting policy.

WEFEZ & HILES  FEHIIR - EFBR
BRI ENEGHZMEN R FRELEH
VEEAZE -
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Particulars of properties held by the Group as at 31 March 2006 are REER-_ZEAFA=T—HRBEZWH
as follows: BT

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE ZAXEEaEEEEE2WERER
GROUP IN HONG KONG

Type Lease term

1. Units D, G and H on 4th Floor, Industrial Medium
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

53 T A Hf
FAREY)
R 305 &
KIRE21F 2358
N
4D - GRHEM

900¢

Y4}

-3

2. Unit B on 10th Floor, Industrial Medium
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

53 T A Hf
FAREY)
R 305 &
KIRE21F 2358
WMERNE
10#EBE L

3. Units A, B, L and O on 11th Floor, Industrial Medium
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

fE T% A Hf
FARY)
RWE305% &
KIRE21E 2358
WMERNE
11#A B LROEN
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PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE #XEEBEAEEBIEEEZWEER
GROUP IN HONG KONG conminueD) (%)

Type Lease term

BE R

4. Town House No.113, Residential Medium
Sunderland Estate,
| Hereford Road,
Kowloon Tong,
Kowloon

JLEE (E=2 i H3
BEIE

EEE 9

HiEE

B3R FRE

5. Flat D on 14th Floor, Residential Long
Block 8,
6 Tak Hong Street,
Whampoa Garden — Site 11,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

JLBE (E=2 K H
4T H

=HHEEFE1H

ERAEOHR

FE QR

142 D=

6. Lorry Car Parking Car park Medium
Spaces Nos. 7, 8, 9 and 10 on 1st Floor
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon

iR EX[v) A
FAR:)

R H305% &

KIRE 2122358

FERNE

11578 9K 105k

HE®EIREAL
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PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE ZXEEhaEEEE2WERESR

GROUP IN HONG KONG (conmnnuep) (%)
Type Lease term
BE HA
7. Private Car Parking Car park Medium
Spaces Nos. 10, 14, 21 and 22 on Basement
Summit Building,
30 Man Yue Street and
21-23 Tai Wan Road,
Hung Hom,
Kowloon
JUEE v 5
AL T
R 308 & 5
RIRE21 8235 <
L PN =
HEEE10 14 21 %225 =
BREHEL .
o

PROPERTY INTERESTS HELD BY THE Z#A&EEBEAEFEEEZYEER
GROUP IN THE PRC

Type Lease term

8. An industrial complex in Industrial Medium
Shitanpu Administrative Zone
Tangxia Town,
Dongguan,
Guangdong Province

EBRA T¥ A
R

A

EEREERBZ

GATEE
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31 March 2006

GROUP IN THE PRC (connnuep)

e

An industrial complex in

Zhenhua Industrial District

Qishi Town,
Dongguan,
Guangdong Province

ERA
RE™
IV ak
REIXRRZ
e L¥EE

Unit A8O5

Tiananchuangxin Technology Square

Shenzhen City
Guangdong Province

i

2/l

R B
BIFT R ES
ABE 8052

An industrial complex in
Huangjiabo Village
ShiPai Town, Shi Pai
Dongguan,
Guangdong Province

BERE
Rz
BHEA B
=R BN
NITER

—EE

— ==

~E=ZRA=1+—H

(&)

Type
BE

Industrial

T%

Industrial

T

Industrial

T

AEEEFREEZ2YERES

Lease term
iR

Medium

Gik

Medium

&

Medium

]
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